e ) N W

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

JOSHUA C. SHUE,
Appellant,
V.

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Respondent.

No. 67428

Electronically Filed

Jul 21 2015 08:49 a.m.
Tracie K. Lindeman
Clerk of Supreme Court

APPELLANT’S APPENDIX VOLUME V PAGES 824-1003

PHILIP J. KOHN
Clark County Public Defender
309 South Third Street

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2610

Attorney for Appellant

STEVE WOLFSON

Clark County District Attorney
200 Lewis Avenue, 3™ Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89155

ADAM LAXALT

Attorney General

100 North Carson Street

Carson City, Nevada 89701-4717
(702) 687-3538

Counsel for Respondent

Docket 67428 Document 2015-21945




L I 7S T o |

o0 o

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19

20

21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

INDEX

ot E sy
PAGE NO.
Acknowledgment of Trial Date filed 10/17/2013 ... eueeeeeeeeeeseeeeeseeeeeeeres oo, 194
Bail Bond Receipt filed 05/09/2013 ..covuioieieeeeeeeeeeesceereees e eeseess e es e eseeee o 05/09/2013
Defendant’s Trial Brief filed 08/12/2014 .......co.veouoreeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e eesee e 257-274
District Court Minutes from 03/13/2013 through 02/05/2015 w.eveeeoveeeeeeeeooeeesoeesn 342-376
Ex Parte Motion for Relcase of Medical Records filed 04/04/2014. .o, 241-242-
Ex Parte Motion for Release of Medical Records filed 04/04/2014.....ovoveveeerooei, 245-246
Ex Parte Order filed 11/26/2014.....cccmvmimmiiieeiieeeeseseeeeeees e eeeeeesee s 329
Indictment filed 03/13/2013 w...oocirrrriirieee e eseeee s e sse s 001-014
Indictment Warrant filed 03/13/2013 ....ooviuiieieiiieeceieeeeeeeee et e eeeeeon 110
Indictment Warrant Return filed 03/21/2013 ..u..uvveevnnveeoneeeee oo eeeeee oo oo 119
Instructions to the Jury filed 08/29/2014.............ouoieceeiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee oo 284-320
Judgment of Conviction filed 01/21/2015 ........covvereeeeeeeeeeeeees s eeeees oo 330-334
Motion for Appointment of Attorney for Appeal filed 01/26/2015 woovvovoooceeoen. 3352336
Motion for Discovery filed 12/03/2013 . ..o 213-219
Motion for Individual Voir Dire of Jurors by Counsel to Protect Defendant’s Right to a Fair
Trial filed 09/23/2013 .. .coiuieieirrerieceies i esesenr e eese e 173-177
Motion for Psychiatric Examination of Alleged Victim filed 09/27/2013 ...ieovmnoeioo. 183-187
Motion in Limine filed 09/16/2013 .......ccocevmmmmmomeriieeeseieeeeeeees e cesee oo 168-170
Motion to Dismiss Indictment Because of Violation Based on Inadequate Notice filed
0B/06/2014 oottt sttt 254-256
Motion to Reset Bail as Previously Set by Magistrate Judge or Grant a Bail Less than
$75,000.00 filed 03/15/2013 ettt eeees s seesees s 111-112
Motion to Vacate and Reset Trial Date filed 09/27/2013 ..cooveeeemrerceeeeeeeoeoeeeon 188-189
Motion to Vacate Trial Date and Reset filed 03/26/2014........covmmeeereeereeereeereeoero, 226-228
Notice of Appeal filed 02/12/2015 ........ooovvieeerieeeeeeeeeeeeeeses oo e 337-341
Notice of Hearing filed 04/17/2014....o.uvmmvmeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee oo e s cesre oo 253
}\I//otice of Motion and Motion in Limine filed 04/03/2013 ....c.covvmmeeererrereeeoiroooo. 229-236




Notice of Witnesses fI1ed 0970372013 ..oovioeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeereseeeesiresessmeeeseesreessbsessssssssosssssons 164-165

Notice of Witnesses filed 08/22/2014 ......coovvvimeeierenneseserreererreeisseen s sisesens 282-283
Opposition to State’s Motion in Limine filed 04/15/2014 ..o 249-252
Order Releasing Medical Records filed 04/04/2014 .......ooveeveeeciiecnineecccrireeneeeees 243-244
Order Releasing Medical Records filed 04/04/2014 ......coerevcneieineninnccce e, 247-248
Reply to State’s Opposition to Defendant’s Motion for Psychiatric Examination of Alleged
Victim filed 1072372013 ettt et r b et 195-202
Reporter’s Transcript of Preliminary Hearing heard 02/27/2013 ... 015-037
Reporter’s Transcript of Proceedings before the Grand Jury heard 03/12/2013.............. 038-109
Return to Writ of Habeas Corpus filed 04/30/2013 ... ivvrceeirreesesneessnsonsnennens 132-158
Second Supplemental Notice of Witnesses filed 09/19/2013.......cociirieveeicie e, 171-172
State’s Opposition to Defendant’s Motion for Individual Voir Dire of Jurors by Counsel to
Protect Defendant’s Right to a Tair Trial filed 09/24/2013 ..o s 178-182
State’s Opposition to Defendant’s Motion for Psychiatric Examination of Alleged Victim filed
LOOTI2003 et sttt bbbt bbbt bs et ennesasb s 190-193
State’s Opposition to Defendant’s Motion to Dismiss Indictment filed 08/18/2014 ....... 275-281
State’s Oppositon to Defendant’s Motion to Reset Bail as Previously Set by Magistrate Judge or
Grant a Bail Less than $75,000.00 filed 03/20/2013 ....c.covoveeivvieiiireee e 113-118
State’s Opposition to Defendant’s Motion to Vacate Trial Date and Reset filed 04/03/2014 .......
.......................................................................................................................................... 237-240
State’s Response to Defendant’s Motion for Discovery filed 12/11/2013.......ccoveneinne.. 220-225
State’s Sur-Reply to Defendant’s Reply to State’s Opposition to Defendant’s Motion for
Psychiatric Examination of Alleged Victim filed 11/06/2013 ..o, 203-212
Supplemental Notice of Witnesses filed 09/12/2013 ......coccciiinvininnniiirr s 166-167
Verdict filed 08/29/2014 ..ottt et bbb s 321-328
Writ of Habeas Corpus filed 04/17/2013....cccconmireiirieinevrrs e s ee e 120-131
TRANSCRIPTS

|| Transcript of Proceedings,
Jury Trial—Day One
Date of Hrg: 08/25/2014 ...ttt st s e se e 538-823

ii




= - = B = O N S

[\Ji\_)[\)[\)[\)[\)[\.)[\)[\_)b—ln—na—nl—-»—-u—aa—-»—np—-n—-
e T o N R = T - L~ N O S T o T S

Transcript of Proceedings,
Jury Trial—Day Two
Date of Hrg: 08/26/2014 ..ottt ss s srevs bbb s s enenssesmnasseonas 824-1003

Transcript of Proceedings,
Jury Trial—Day Three
Date of Hrg: 08/27/2014 ..ot sesssss s bt s senas 1004-1177

Transcript of Proceedings,
Jury Trial—Day Four
Date of Hrg: 08/28/2014 ......cuioioreeeereesiee et eeveas s snene s s s st stss s sasanns e 1178-1348

Transcript of Proceedings,
Jury Trial—Day Five
Date of Hrg: 08/29/2014........cooiee ettt ss bbb re s s e aesns 1349-1493

Recorder’s Transcript of Proceedings,
Calendar Call ‘
Date of Hrg: 08/21/2014 ..ot esess e ere s sress s sassenasa 525-534

Recorder’s Transcript of Proceedings,

-|| Calendar Call; State’s Motion in Limine

Date of Hrg: 05/29/2014......ooirmieeerreiereeiere e esesissessees s sssaeasss e ss s en s esnsnens 509-518

Recorder’s Transcript of Proceedings,
Defendant’s Motion for Appointment of Attorney for Appeal '
Date of Hrg: 02/05/2015 ..o ottt sae st 1520-1521

Recorder’s Transcript of Proceedings,
Defendant’s Motion for Discovery
Date of Hrg: [2/17/2013 oottt essss st en ettt s b sn e sn e 434-448

Recorder’s Transcript of Proceedings,
Defendant’s Motion for Psychiatric Examination of Alleged Victim

Date of Hrg: 10/08/2013.....ccorioorierreceeriree et et rse s s 414-419

Recorder’s Transcript of Proceedings,
Defendant’s Motion to Dismiss Indictment Because of Violation Based on Inadequate Notice

Date of Hrg: 08/19/201d ...ttt er et aet et ee e eme e e 519-524

Recorder’s Transcript of Proceedings,
Defendant’s Motion to Vacate Trial Date and Reset
Date of Hrg: 04/08/2014 .c.covvmviiieeeerreireieee ittt enesnesessas e saevore st s sr s nnnnons 457-467

Recorder’s Transcript of Proceedings,
Evidentiary Hearing
Date of Hrg: 05/19/2014 ..ottt bbb s rene s 468-508

Recorder’s Transcript of Proceedings,
Hearing; Defendant’s Motion for Psychiatric Examination of Alleged Victim

Date of Hrg: 11/07/2013 .ottt et s e e et aneeeane 420-433
Recorder’s Transcript of Proceedings,

Sentencing

Date of Hrg: 12/09/2014 iriviiiiiieieereviorireecneeseeeeesssinse e esesessssases s vaonenenes 1494-1496

iii




R - e N

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

|{ Transcript of Proceedings,

Date 0f Hrg: 05/02/2013 ..ot rsescs et et en s e e 392-401
Transcript of Proceedings,

|| Overflow
Date of Hrg: 08/22/2014......ocv ettt ettt st et eeesene et eeanens 535-537

Recorder’s Transcript of Proceedings,

Sentencing
Date Of HIg: O1/15/2015 cuuieeeeieeiietee e eeee et e e eveeeess st steeeseeseesessteresesesssssssssns 1497-1519

Recorder’s Transcript of Proceedings,
Status Check: CPS Records
Date 0f Hig: 02/04/2014 c..ccouoomeieeeiieeeeere ettt ies ettt se e see s s aae s 449-454

Recorder’s Transcript of Proceedings,
Status Check: CPS Records
Date of Hrg: 02/20/2014 ...t et st e s eeseneee e et eeetesesesesnaes 455-456

Calendar Call; Defendant’s Motion for Individual Voir Dire of Jurors by Counsel to Protect
Defendant’s Right to a Fair Trial
Date 0f Hrg: 10/03/2013 ...ttt ettt e e s esenanaee 409-413

Transcript of Proceedings,
Defendant’s Motion in Limine
Date of Hrg: 09/26/2013 ..ottt st enee st sa s sene e tone 402-408

Transcript of Proceedings,
Defendant’s Motion to Reset Bail
Date 0 Hrg: 04/25/2013 ...ttt sve st eee et sen s s e ee s 386-391

Transcript of Proceedings,

Defendant’s Motion to Reset Bail as Previously Set by Magistrate Judge or Grante a Bail Less
than $75,000.00; Indictment Warrant Return

Date of Hrg: 03/28/2013 ......oiiiieeitie ettt s s s s 377-385

Transcript of Proceedings,
Defendant’s Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus

iv




Electronically Filed
04/15/2015 07:53:17 AM

5 - Q@;‘jkﬂwﬂ.’

1 ' CLERK OF THE COURT
TRAN

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

* k. Ok * Kk

THE STATE COF NEVADA,

“ Plaintiff, CASE NO, CZ88172-1
DEPT NO. XXI
vs.

TRANSCRIPT OF

JOSHUA C. SHUE,
PROCEEDINGS

Defendant.

BEFORE THE HONCRABLE VALERIE ADAIR, DISTRICT CCURT JUDGE

" JURY TRIAL — DAY 2
TUESDAY, AUGUST 26, 2014

APPEARANCES;

For the State: LEAH C. BEVERLY, ESQ.

MARIA LAVELL, ESQ.

Chief Deputy District Attorneys
For the Defendant: TERRENCE M, JACKSCON, ESQ.

RECCRDED BY:; JANIE OLSEN, COURT RECORDER
' TRANSCRIBED BY: KARR Reporting, Inc.

KARR Reporting, Inc,

824



INDEZX
Opening Statement for the State by Ms. Beverly
WITNESSES FOR THE STATE:
RAYMOND SPENCER
Direct Examination by Ms. Beverly
Cross-Examination by Mr. Jackson
Redirect Examination by Ms. Beverly
VICENTE RAMIREZ
Direct Examination bf Ms. Lavell
Cross-Examinaticon by Mr. Jackson
Redirect Examination by Ms. Lavell
Recross—-Examination by Mr. Jackson
Follow-Up Examination by Mr. Jackson

Follow-Up Examination by Ms. Lavell

Further Follbw“Up Examination by Mr. Jacksocn

Further Follow-Up Examination by Ms. Lavell

Further Follow-Up Examination by Mr. Jackson

Further Recross-Examination by Mr. Jackson

Further Redirect Examination by Ms. Lavell
RYAN JAEGER

Direct Examination by Ms. Laveli

Cross—-Examination by Mr. Jackson

Redirect Examination by Ms . Lavell

Follow-Up Examination by Ms. Lavell

'KARR Reporting, Inc.
2

15

28 -

35

36

72

86

93

91

102

105

107

108

123

125

126

155

169

175

825



B EXHIBITS
N EXHIBITS ADMITTED FOR THE STATE:
1 Flash Drive - Video Files _ 52
] 2 Photo taken up Hazel Iral's skirt 43
| 3 Photo - Nude boys engaged in sexual act 49
4 Photo - Nude boy in shower | | 49
5  Photo - | . 49
6 Photo - Nude boy laying prone on bed | 49
7 Photo 49
8 Photo 49
9 Photo 49
10 Photo - Nude boy 49
i1 Photo 49
31 Photo - Garage door of 609 Palm Wash residence 24
32 Photo - Placard identifying 609 Palm Wash residence 24
33 Photco - Front door of 609 Palm Wash residence 24
] 34 Photo - Downstairs area of 609 Palm Wash residence 24
B 35 Photo | 24
36 Photo 24
37 Photo 24
38 Photo 24
% 39 Photo | : 24
f 40 Photo 24
ri 41 Photo | 24
? 42 Photo 24
KARR Reporting,llnc.
3

Bz

i
i
]
|
i
|
i
i



EXHIBITS (Continued)

EXHIBITS ADMITTED FOR THE STATE (Cont inued} :

43
44
45
46
47
48
48
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61

62

Photo
Photo
Photo
Photo
Photo
Photo
Photo
Photo
Photo
Photo
Fhoto
Photo
Photo
Photo
Photo
Photo
Photo
Phote
FPhoto
Photo
Photo
Photo

Photo

graircase leading to bedroom
Bedroom

Bedroom

Bedroom

Bedroom
Desk

Sony VAIO laptop on desk

Desk with draﬁer removed

contents of desk drawer

KARR Reporting, Inc.
4

24

24

24

24

24

24

24

24

24

24

24

24

24

24

24

24

24

24

24

24

24

24

24

827



EXHIBITS (Continued)

EXHIBITS ADMITTED FOR THE STATE (Continued) :

66

72

73

74

15

Photo - Close-up of contents of desk drawer
Photo - Video camera

Fhoto

Photo

Pheoto

Photo

Photo

Photo

Photo

Photo

KARR Repcrting, Inc.
5

24

24

24

24

24

24

24

24

24

48

828



S

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

LAS VEGAS, CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA, AUGUST 26, 2014, 11:34 A.M,
FJ * kx Kk kK
(Outside the presence of the jury.)

THE COURT: Are you a witness, sir?

UNIDENTIFIED SPEARKER: Yes, ma'am.

THE COURT: Yes. We do have the exclusionary rule.
So you do need to sit in the hall, or the vestibule 15 fine.

MR. JACKSON: I was going to invoke —-

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Thank you.

{In the presence of the Jury. )

THE COURT: A1l right. Court is now back in session.
The record should reflect the presence of the S5State through the
deputy district attorneys, the defendant and his counsel, the
officers of the court and the ladies and gentlemen of the jury.

Good morning, ladies and gentlemeﬁ. 1 apologize for
our tardy start. Our morning calendar went longer than what
was anticipated.

as I told you yesterday, we'll be beginning this
morning with the opening statements.

Is the State ready to proceed with their opening
_statement?

MS. BEVERLY: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right.

{Opening statement for the State.)

MS. BEVERLY: Good morning. In late 2012, a search

" KARR Reporting, Inc.
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warrant was served on a Sony VAIO laptop computér belonging to
Joshua Shue, the defendant in this case. During the search cof
that computer multiple videos and photos of children in various
states of nudity were found, including children belonging to
the defendant's then girlfriend Anita Iral.

Because of his actions, the defendant is-charged in
this case with a total of 41 cocunts that were read to you
yesterday during the opening instructions, one count of child.
abuse, 29 counts of use of child 1in producticn of pornography,

10 counts of possession of child pornography, and cne count of

‘open and gross lewdness, and the purpose of an opening

statement is to give you as a jury a roadmap as Lo the
testimony and evidence that you will hear during this trial so
you have a context to place it into as we go through this
trial.

Now, during this trial you're going to meet Hazel
Iral, and Hazel is currently 19 years old, and she's going to
tell you that she knows the defendant Joshua Shue because
between 2010 and August 23rd of 2012, the defendant was dating
Hazel's mother Anita. You alsc -- she's also going to.tell you
she has two brothers, including Kurt Iral, who you heard
yesterday is also a named victim in this case.

Now, Hazel is going to tell you that between 2010 and
2012, she was living at 3640 Kolendo Court, Apartment D, here

in Las Vegas, and at that apartment she lived with her mcther

KARR Reporting, Inc.
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- 1 Anita Iral, her two younger brothers Kurt and Franzkie Iral,

2 and the defendant Joshua Shue, and you'll hear that Joshua

3 lived there, but he also lived in another residence where he

1 was renting a room. So he would go back and forth between

5 Hazel's house and his own house during that time period.

5 This is the defendant's house that you'll hear about
7 throughout this trial. The address of that house is 609 Palm

8 Wash Lane, and that's in Henderson, Nevada.

9 Now, how this all came about -- and you'll hear about
10 throughout this trial -- is that on August 23rd of 2012, Hazel
11 Iral reporfed torpolice that on the night before, August 22,

12 2012, the defendant had taken a picture up her skirt and had
13 inappropriately kissed her, and when she woke up in the

14 morning, she reported this to ﬁhe police department, the Las
15 Vegas Metropolitan Police Department. When she did that,

16 Detective Ryan Jaeger began an investigation into Hazel's

17 allegations.

18 He interviewed Hazel, and he interviewed the

19 defendant Joshua Shue. You'll hear Detective Jaeger testify,

20 l| and he's going to tell you about this interview that he

21 conducted with Mr. Shue. During that interview Mr. Shue

22 admitted taking a picture up Hazel's skirt the night before.
23 Be saidrhe was doing it in a joking manner, but heradmitted
24 taking that picture.

25 He also allcwed detectives to search through his cell

KARR Reporting, Inc.
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phone that hé had with him during the interview, and what was
interesting and that you'll hear during this trial is that his
cell phone contained zero data, no missed calls, no text
messages, no photos. The phone had been wiped completely
clean. |

MR. JACKSON: I'm going to object to that as a
cenclusien.

THE COURT: All right. That's sustained. That the
phone contained no record is what she believes the evidence
will show.

MS. BEVERLY: Thank you, Your Honcr.

You're also going to hear that during the interview
Mr. Shue admitted that he had romantic feelings for Hazel, and
you'll hear that during the interview he also admitted to
taking other inappropriate photos of Hazel.

Now, based on this interview and based on his
interview with Hazel as well, Detective Jaeger was -- authored
two search warrants, cne for Hazel's house, the Kolendo Court,
where the defendant would also stay sometimes, and one for the
defendant’'s other house at the Palm Wash Lane address, and that
search warrant was for the purposes of looking for the blue
camera where the photo had been taken up the skirt, other
computers, electronic devices, any other storage medias that
may contain additional photos.

Now, detectives served that search warrant at the

KARR Reporting, Inc.
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Kolendo address, and they were able to recover a blue Canon
camera that becomes of relevance a little bit later.

Detectives also searched the Palm Wash Lane address, and they
recovered multiple items from the room of Joshua Shue,
including a Sony VAIO léptop, a video camera, multiple
disposable cameras, multiple rolls of film, a desktop computer
and multiple CDs.

Now, this is Joshua Shue's room at the Palm Wash
address that was searched. This was before the search, and of
relevance is this desk over to the left part of the screen
conﬁaining a computer you see sitting on it. This is a closer
up of this Sony.VAIO laptop computer which contains the
majority of the evidence in this case. |

Also on that same desk where the computer was found
was alsc a drawer in the desk that becomes of relevance because
inside of that drawer were other multiple dispcsable cameras, a
video camera, condoms and various lubricants inside of that
drawer.

MR. JACKSON: Objection. Irrelevant.

THE COURT: Overruled.

MS. BEVERLY: Now, during this, detectives were able
to search tﬁe blue camera that was found at the Kolendo
address, and that seafch was done by Detective Ramirez, who
will be testifying today. Detective Ramirez is going to tell

you that he did a forensic analysis of that blue camera, and he

KARR Reporting, Inc.
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found the phote that was taken up the skirt of Hazel on August
the 22nd of 2012, and this is that photo, and you'll see that
during the trial.

Detective Ramirez is also going to tell you that he
conducted a forensié analysis of the Sony VRIO laptop computer
that we just saw in the previoué pictures in Josh -— that was
found in Joshua Shue's room, and he'll tell you that when he
was conducting that analysis he was able to determine that the
computer was registered to Joshua Shue. As he was doing that
analysis as well, he was able tco find two folders, the first
folder being named Yummm, second folder being named Emmm, and
he'll tell you that those folders were actually hidden on the
computer.

As he continued his search of the computer, inside of
these folders Yummm and Hmmm were multiple videos of Hazel and
Kurt Iral nude in the bathroom of their Kolendo addréss,
showering, using the restroom and doing other bathroom
activities. Tn some of those videos you'll also see the
defendant actually setting up the camera inside the children's
bathroom.

Now, during this trial -- and I apologize in advance
for what you're going to seé, but during this trial we have to
play parts of those videos. You will have the videos for each
count to take back with you in the jury reccocm at the ehd of this

trial, and you're more than welcome to watch the whole length

KARR Reporting, Inc.
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of the video, but for purpeses of the trial we will show the
clips of the videos for each count during this trial.

Now, in each video that we're going to dgo through and
each video that makes up the count, Hazel is going to identify
herself, her brother, thelr ages and the location where the
video was filmed, and she's going toc tell you —-— and you'll
actually be able to see in the video as well —-- that she was
completely unaware that this video was being recorded, and
she'll tell you that the oniy reason that she found out about
this video is after the detectives did a search on the
computer, recovered the videos and then showed them to Hazel,
and she only fully watched the videos when she testified
previously at a Grand Jury.

Now, these are some of the images from the videos
that you're going to see -~

MR. JACKSON: 1I'm going to object. They're not in
evidence at this time. T believe ——

THE COURT: Counsel, approach.

MR. JACKSON: -- admitting —

TEE COURT: Counsel, approach, please.

(Conference at the bench not recorded.)

MS. BEVERLY: So again you're going to see‘the videos
that are named in the complaint that was read yesterday during
this trial, and again we will have to go through parts of gach

video so that way Hazel can identify herself and her brother

KARR Reporting, Inc.
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and their ages as well as the relevant location.

Neow, 1n addition to these videos being found on the
computer, there were also multiple other images, an
unidentified male juvenile child in various sexual poses and
photos -- a photo of a male juvenile giving another male
juvenile oral sex. Those are four counts, 40 and 41 of the
indictment, and you'll see those throughout the trial as well.

50 based on the defendant's conduct, based on the

items found on his computer, at the end of this trial, the

State's going to ask that you find him guilty of each and every

one of those 41 counts.

Thank you.

THE COURT: All right. . Thank you, Ms. Beverly.

Does the defense wish to make an opening statement at
this time?

MR. JACKSON: Can I have the Court's indulgence a
moment . |

Your Honor, the defense would rather reserve its
opening at this time.

THE COURT: Reserve its right. All right. Thank
you.

The State may call its firsf witness.

MS. BEVERLY: Thank you. The State calls Sergeant

Spencer .

MR. JACKSON: And the rule to exclude witnesses 1is

KARR Reporting, Inc.
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invoked at this time.

THE COURT: Right. The exclusionary rule is 1in
effect.

MR. JACKSON: Thank you.

THE COURT: And the bailiff --

You can get the next witness.

I believe she's not a witness.

and, Mr. Jackson, the bailiff knows that when people
come into the courtroom to make sure they're not witnesses.

Just right up here, up those couple of stairs, next
to me, and please remain standing facing that lady right there
who will be administering. the oath to you in a moment.

THE WITNESS: Ckay.

MR. JACKSON: Your Honor, before Sergeant Spencer

proceeds, 1've received no reperts in my discovery concerning

Sergeant Spencer. If the State has any, I would like them now.

THE COURT: Okay --
MS. BEVERLY: Can we approach?
THE CQURT: You can approach.
(Conference at the bench not recorded.)
(State's witness, Raymond Spencer, sworn.)
THE CLERK: Thank you. Please be seated, and please
state and spell your name.
THE WITNESS: My name is Raymond Spencer.

R-a-y-m-o-n-d, S-p-e-n-c-e-r.

KARR Reporting, Inc.
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MS. BEVERLY: May 1 proceed, Your Honor?
THE COURT: You may.
MS. BEVERLY: Thank you.
DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MS. BEVERLY:
Q Sir, how are you curfently employed?
A I'm currently a sergeant with the.Las Vegas

Metropolitan Police Department.

Q How long have you been with Metro?
it I've been with Metro for just over 1Z years.
Q Okay. And what are in general the duties of a

sergeant with Metro?

y: A Sergeant with Metro oversees first-line cfficers
and detectives in the function of their day-to-day job
functions.

Q And how is being & sergeant or detective different
from being a patrol bfficer?

A Patrol officers, who the public typically thinks of
when they think of police officers, they're uniformed. They're
in police cars or on motorcycles. They respond to your general
calls for serVice.

A detective is typically dressed in civilian clothes.
They respond and conduct investigations after the initial
patrol officer responds.

As a sergeant -- you have sergeants in patrol, and
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Q

A
Q
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Q

IJsex-based

A

0

you have sergeants that supervise detectives as well.
current assignment,

detectives.

Okay. And

My

I'm a Detective Sergeant, supervising

are you currently assigned to the

unit of Metro?

Yes, I &m.

Okay. Wer
Yes, ma'am
And were y
ma "am

Yes,

Now, I wan

August the 23rd of 2012.

Yes,
Okay. And
unit?
Yes,
Okay. And
Yes,

What shift

T work day

And while

e vou working in that unit back in August

, 1 was.

ou a sergeant at that time?’

, 1 was.

t to direct your attention spebifically to

Were you working on that date?

I was.

were you working as a sergeant with the

I was.

on that day were you working a particular

I was.

were you working?

shift, which starts at & a.m. and

Iltypically ends at 4 p.m.

you were working that day, were you

assigned to serve a search warrant for an address located at
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60% Palm Wash Lane?

A Yes, I was.
Q And where did that warrant come Ifrom?
2 That warrant was originated from Detective Ryan

Jaeger, who's one of the detectives that works for me.

Q And for this particular case that_we’re talking
about, was Detective Jaeger the lead detective, so tc say, on
this partiéular case?

A Yes, he was the lead detective.

Q and did you have knowledge that he had auvthored and

prepared a search warrant for this particular address?

A Yes, he did.

Q and was that search warrant signed by a Judge?

A Yes, it was.

Q Now, did you in- fact go and serve the search warrant

at 609 Palm Wash?

A Yes, I did.
Q Who were you with when you served the search warrant?
A Originally when I showed up, it was myself and

Detective Grivis [phonetic], and then later a CSI technician
assisted us.

0O Qkay. Can you tell us how vou and your fellow
members of Metro went about serving this particular search

warrant.

A Yes. When we got there, we tried to get into the

KARR Reporting, Inc.
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actual residence. We were delayed for at least about an hour

and a half because there was a dog inside the residence that

|wasn‘t letting us.in the house. So we had to get a trash can
to kind of push the dog out of the way s0 we could get the dog
outside before we could get in, and then we'd begin the
execution of the warrant.

0 Did you have to have somecne try to come get the dog

" so you don't have to shoot the dog, or how does that work?

At the time we were there, Henderson did not have animal
control on. 1 then tried to call the county to have their

animal control come help us. They wouldn't come help us. S0

Ilthat's why we had to rescort to one of the big Republic Service

trash cans to kind of protect us, so to say, from the dog.
Q Now, once you were eventually able to get into the

residence, was anyone home at the time?

A At the Ltime we initially entered, no.

Q So tell us what happened when you first entered the
house.

A Myself and Detective Grivis, we cleared the house to

make sure there was nobody else in the residence, and then we
began the execution of the search warrant..

Q and what exactly were you and your fellow detective
‘supposed to be looking for in this residence?

A We were looking for any digital media inside of the

KARR Reporting, Inc.
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bedrocm belonging to the defendant.
Q Okay. And by the defendant, who are you referring-
to?
B Mr. Shue, sitting off to my left, wearing a jacket
and tie.
MS. BEVERLY: Okay. Let the record reflect
identification of the defendant, Ycur Honor.
Let the record reflect identificétion -
THE CQURT: Oh, yes. I'm sorry.
MS. BEVERLY: It's ckay. Thank you.
BY MS. BEVERLY:
C and so fair to say vou had knowledge that this
residence was occupied in part at least by Joshua Shue?
A  Yes, ma'am.
Q Okay. &nd again you were looking for any type of
electronic storage, media, things of that nature?
A Correct, anything capable of storing electronic

media, from computers to thumb drives to cameras, anything of

the sort.
Q Where did you start your search?
A We started the search in the upstairs bedroom. When

you go up the stairs, you make a right, and it's the bedroom in
the back on the left at the end of the hallway.

Q and did you have knowledge of whose bedroom that was?

A Yes.

KARR Reporting, Inc.
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0 Whose bedroom was- 1t?
A Mr. Shue.
Q Okay. .And is that why you focused your attention
specifically on that room?
A Yes, ma'am.
o Okay.
MS. BEVERLY: Court's indulgence.
THE CCURT: That's fine.
MS. BEVERLY: Your Honor, for the record, I'm showing
defense counsel what's béen marked as State's Exhibit Nos. 31
through 74.

THE COURT: All right.

‘BY MS. BEVERLY:

Q While Mr. Jackson is looking through those, let me
just. ask you —-—

MR. JACKSON: Oh, wait. Before you ask, I want to
keep looking through these because I am still looking at theses,
and —-

MS. BEVERLY: Fine.

THE COURT: We'll just be at ease for a moment while
Mr. Jackson —-

MR. JACKSON: T can't do two things at once. I'm not
that smart.

MS. BEVERLY: T'll watt, Yoﬁr Honor .

THE COURT: -— reviews the photos.

KARR Reporting, Inc.
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MR. JACKSON: There's 74 photos here. It's going to
‘take me at least a minute to go through them.

MS. BEVERLY: 1I'l1 wait, Your Honor.

MR. JACKSON: Since_I haven't seen these before —-

MS5. LAVELL: That's --

MS. BEVERLY: Your Heonor, can we approach, please?

MR. JACKSON: As soon as I'm done looking at these.

THE COURT: Well, actually, Mr. Jackson, you can
apprcach now, and then you can resume looking at them, but
Ms. Beverly will not be allowed to question the witness until
you've had an opportunity tc lock at those,

(Conference at the bench not recorded.}

MR. JACKSON: . It'll take me a.minute.

THE COURT: That's fine. All right. Mr. Jackson, my
understanding is you were provided all possible photos, but you
didn't know what the exhibits would be. 3o take a moment to
look through what they're using as the exhibits in this case.

We'll just be at ease for a few minutes.

MR. JACKSON: Well, let me correct the record. If I
need to approach the bench, I will.

THE CCURT: All right. So do you need tc approach
the bench?

MR. JACKSON: 1If you don't wanti me to correct it in
front of the jury, I'll approach_the bench.

THE COURT: All right. Mr. Jackson --

KARR Reporting, Inc.
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MR. JACKSON: I -- until I look at them, I don't know
if I've been provided all of them.

MS. BEVERLY: VWe'd like to apprpach.

MR. JACKSON: If I look at them, then I'1]1 know 1f
I've been provided all of them.

THE COURT: Okay. 1'll see counsel at the bench.

and certainly you're going to be given an opportunity
to look at the photos before Ms. Beverly resumes her
guesticning.

{Conference at the bench not recorded. )
THE COURT: We'll just ke at ease for a momentl
(Pauée in the proceedings.)

THE COURT: And for the record, Mr. Jackscn, you're
handing the photos back to Ms. Reverly. Did you have an
opportunity to look at all of those?

MR. JACKSON: T had a chance to glance at all of
them, vyes.

THE COURT: 2All right. Ms. Beverly, you may proceed
with your direct examination of the officer.

MS. BEVERLY: Thank you, Your Honor.

BY MS. BEVERLY:

Q Okay. Sergeant Spencer, aé we were.talking about,
you had just indicated thét you had and were focusing on the
bedroomibelonging to —- that you had knowledge of that bedroom

belonging to Mr. Shue; is that correct?

KARR Reporting, Inc.
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A That's correct,
Q Okay. And while you were doing your search, were
photes taken during the execution of the search warrant?
A Yes, the CSI technician that responded out there with
us took overall photographs of the residence.
Q And were you present when those photos.were taken?
A Yes, ma}am, I was.
MS. BEVERLY: Okay. May I approach the witness; Your
Honor?
THE COURT: You may.
BY MS5. BEVERLY:
Q I'm going to show you what's been marked as State's
Exhibit No. 31 through 74. Can you just look through these on

your own and tell me if 'you recognize what's depicted in these

photos.

A Do you want me to talk as I go through them?

Q No, jﬁst general -- flip through them and see if
those -- if you recognize those.

A Okay. Yes, I do.

Q Okay. Were those photos taken during the execution
of the search warrant?

A Yes, they were.

Q Okay. And are these a fair and accufate copy of what
was viewed by yourseclf durihg the execution of the search

warrant?

KARR Reporting, Inc.
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A Yes, it was.

MS. BEVERLY: Okay. At this time, Your Honor, I
would move for the introduction of State's Exhibit No. 31
through 74.

THE COURT: Any objections, Mr. Jackson?

ME. JACKSON: ©No obkjection.

THE COURT: All right.  These exhibits will be
admitted.

(State's Exhibit Nos. 31 - 74 admitted.)

MS. BEVERLY: Permission to publish?

THE COURT: You may.

MS. BEVERLY: Thank vyou.
BY MS. BEVERLY:

Q Okay. First, 1'm going to show you State's
Exhibit -- ncw admitted Exhibit No. él. Let's see. Let's zoom
irn on that a little bit. Can you see that on your screen?

A Yes, I can.

MS. BEVERLY: Can the members of the jury see that
okay?
(No audible response.)

BY MS. BEVERLY:

9] Okay. What are we looking at in State’'s Exhibit No.
317

2 That would be the front door of the exterior of the
residence.
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Q Showing you State's Exhibit No. 32, what is this?

A That's the placard identifying 609 as being the
numbers to the residence.

Q Okay.

A and just to clarify, on that last photo, I think I
said front door. 1It's actually the garage door that we were
locking at.

Q Okay. Thank you. So just to be clear, on State's

Exhibit No. 33, would that be the front door of the house?

Fil That's correct.
Q Now showing you State's Exhibit No. 34 -- let's
see -— would this be a photo of just the residence, the

downstairs part of the residence in gereral?

A Yes.

Q Okay. And was this in a two-story house or a
cne-story house?

A Tt .was a two-story house.

Q Ckay. And the room where you indiﬁated was of
particular interest, was that upstairs or downstairs?

A That was upstairs.

Q - Okay. Showing you State’s Exhibit No. 47, what's
depicted here?

A When you're downstairs and you're locking at the
staircase from downstairs, looking upstairs to the upstairs

hallway.

KARR Reporting, Inc.
25

8438



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

13

20

21

22

23

24

25

Q Okay. Leading up to the bedroom belonging to Joshua
Shue? | |

A That's correct.

Q Okay. Showing you State's Exhibit No. 49, what are

we ldoking at here?

A That's from the hallway looking into Mr. Shue's
bedroom.
O Showing you State's Exhibit No. 51, is this inside of

Mr. Shue's bedroom?

A Yes, if you're standing inside, the door would be off
to what would be my right, and that would be his bed on the
left.

Q and during the execution of your search warrant, was
there a particular part of this room that you focused in on?

A Yes, there was.

¢ Okay. You can actually take your finger and draw on
the screen. If you can just circle what area you focﬁsed in on
for the jury.

Okay. And would that be the desk area?

A Yes, it is. _

THE MARSHAL: The officer has to clear it on his
monitor. If you tap the bottom-right corner.

THE COURT: Tap it on the bottom. It'il —-
BY MS. BEVERLY: |

Q Okay. Showing you State's Exhibit No. 60, again, a

KARR Reporting, Inc.
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closer view of that desk?

A . Yes, it 1is.

9] Okay. Now showing you State's Exhibit No. 61, whét
are we locking at here?

A That's a Sony VAIO lapteop computer that was sitting

on the desk when we served the warrant.

Q Were there drawers in this desk?
A Yes, there was.
Q Did you remove those drawers to look for anything in

those drawers?

A | Yes, we did.

Q QOkay. Showing you State's Exhibit No. 64, is this
after one of the drawers has been removed?

A Yes, it is.

Q Showing you State's Exhibit No. &5, what are we
loocking at here?

A That's the contents of one of -- the bottom-right
drawer of that. desk in the'previous -

Q And can you describe for the record what -- oh,
actually, let me show you this. State's Exhibit No. 66, can
you describe for the record what types of items are in that
drawer.

A Yes, there's some disposable cameras. There is a
video camera, a regular camera, some lubrication and condoms as

well in the drawer.
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Q And that was the drawer found in close proximity to

the Sony VAIO laptop computer?

B That's correct.

Q Once you found these particular items, what did you
do with them?

A We photographed those, then tock those into evidence
to be booked in evidence.

Q Okay. And were those items actually bocked into
evidence by your department?

I Yes, they were,.

Q Okay. Specifically who?

2 T believe Detective Grivis and LaFenyear [phonetic]

hooked those both into evidence.

Q Okay. And was that the extent of serving the search
warrant, the extent of your -- in'general —-— extent —— excuse
me -- of your invelvement in this particular case in general

serving of the search warrant?
A Yes.
MS. BEVERLY: Okay. All right. Nothing further.
THE COURT: All right. Thank you.
Cross—examination. |
CROSS-EXAMINATION
BY MR. JACKSON:

Q Wwhat time of day or night did you go tec serve this

warrant?

KARR Repcrting, Inc.
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a It was approximately 7 p.m. in the eveningi

0 And you waited abcut an hour and a half because there
was a dog barking or there was a dog inside the house before
you went in?

A Wé couldn't get intc the house. When we got there,
we tried ﬁo get in, but the dog -- he would run arocund to the
side, or he would run to the front. So I made several phone
calls -—

Q Ch, wait. Look at me. 1I'm the one asking you the
questions, not the jury.

THE COQURT: Well, he's allowed —— I mean —--—

MR. JACKSON: Well, maybe I'll stand over here so I
can hear his answers better.

THE COURT: Okay. Well, if that's the issue.

And, sir, just, you know, so everybody can hear you,
including obviously Mr. Jacksocn, that's the microphone right
there. When you turn away from looking straight, make sure you
move the microphone so that you can be speaking more directly
inte the microphone.

THE WITNESS: Yes, ma'am.

THE COURT: Okay. Yes, that just moves along on the
table there.

BY MR. JACKSON:
Q Okay. Néw, Officer, how did you get iﬁ? Did you use

a key?
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A Yes, I believe we had a key to the residence.

Q Who gave you the key?

T

Detective Jaeger.

Q How did he get the key?

A You would have to ask Detective Jaeger, sir.

Q Okay. So you had a key from Detective Jasger, but
you couldn't get in because yocu were afraid of the dcg?

A They're -— we tried for an extensive amount of time
to get the dog to go into the backyard so we could get into --

Q ‘Right.

A —— the residence, and that's why we finally -~ aﬁter
calling Henderson animal control, animal control from Clark
County -- and I specifically remémber it because I kind of got
in a long discussion with the supervisor from Clark County
because it was only about a mile from there.

Q Well, the question was: Were you afraid of the dog?

THE COURT: Yes. Just make sure you focus on the
gquestion.

THE WITNESS: Okay.

fHE COURT: And then cf course, Ms. Beverly, if she
wants you to elaborate, she can follow up on redirect.

THE WITNESS: Yes, ma'am.
BY MR. JACKSON:

Q Were you afraid of the dog?

A Yes, I was.
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How big was this dog?

Q

A I don't --

Q Bbout 15 pounds?

A I don't recall the specifics. 1 Jjust dicdn't want to
get kit by the dog. |

Q You have a picture of the dog in your Exhibits 31 to
74; is that right?

A There is a picture of a dog, yes.

Q And it's a faifly small dog; wouldn't that be fair to
say”?

A Rgain, I -- I can just tell you I just remember the
dog was barking.

C Okay. And then you put the dog in a -- in a
dumpster; is that what you put it in?

A No, we -—-

MS. BEVERLY; Objection. Misstates the testimony.

BY MR. JACKSON:

Q Well, what did you put the dog in --

THE COURT: Well, he can answer the --

THE WITNESS: No. We —- we took the -- it's the big
trash cans that Republic Services gives you that you put out on
the side of the street. We took that, and we pushed it,
putting it as a barrier between us and the dog sc we could get

the dog to go into the backyard so we could close off the dog

and keep the dog in the backyard.
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BY MR. JACKSON:
Q How was 1t --

TUE COURT: And -- I'm sorry. Are you talking akout
those metal dumpsters that commercial businesses get, Or are
you talking, like, the -— something that a residential customer
might use”?

THE WITNESS: The residential ones;, the big black

sguare ones. They have ones --— I think they're, like,
%6 gallons, the ones that you put on -- it's not-a —- there's a
photograph of the dumps —-- OT the trash can in the house. It's

in one of the photographs.
BY MR. JACKSON:
0 Do they have a lid on top of them?
A I believe it did.
0 Wwell, how long did you keep the dog inside the trash
can?
MS. BEVERLY: I'm going to object as to relevance at
this point.
THE COURT: Well —-
MR. JACKSON: Well, it depends on how long he was
doing the search. 1It's relevant.
THE COURT: All right. 81l right. You can answer
the question.
THE WITNESS: The dog. was never in the trash can,

sir. We‘pushed —— we used that as a barrier to keep the dog
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between us and -- or us and the dog so we could get the dog
cutside so the dog wouldn't be inside the house during the
search warrant.
BY MR. JACKSON:

9] When you seized all these items up on the seccond
floor, were you using latex gloves when you picked them up?
When you seized the cameras, when you seized the condoms, when

you seized the other items, were your hands encased in latex

gloves?
A Yes.
0 Okay. So you wanted to preserve any fingerprints

that might be on these items; is that correct?

A I can say with those contents specifically, I was

more —— I didn't want to touch those contents.

QO The cameras?

A Or the cameras or the condoms or the. lubrication.

0 Well, de you know if the cameras were ever dusted for
fingerprints?

A I don't know that, sir.

Q Before vou lifted these items off the floor or off
the —— out of the desk or whatever, did ybu -— did you dust

these items for fingerprints?
A There —— I didn't -- we did -- there was no by myself
dusting or preserving fingerprints. We were simply collecting

evidence at the crime scene.
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Q Now, did the search warrant say that you could seize
any condohs that were found in the desk drawer or by the
bedroom or in the bedroom area?

it I would have to look at the actual warrant, sir.

Q Did you look at the warrant before going there?

A Yes, I did.

Q So you were acting only according to the warrant
because somecne -- you could only act pursuant to the warrant;
1s that right?

A I was executing the search warrant that was obtained

by Detective Jaeger.

0 And you wouldn't exceed the bounds of the warrant; is
that correct?

A Again, I'd have to see the warrant, sir.

Q Detective Jaeger I assume asked that you seize any
condoms that were available in the house; is that correct?

A I don't know that, sir. What 1 said is I'd have to
see the warrant to find out if -- what language was in the

warrant specifically.

Q Are condoms illegal in. this state?
A No, sir, they're not.
Q In fact, they're a necessary protection that people

have; is that right?
A That's correct.

MR. JACKSON: No further gquestions.
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THE COURT: Do we have any redirect?

li MS. BEVERLY: Just briefly, Your Honor.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION

| BY Ms. BEVERLY:

o I'm going to show you what 's been marked as State's
JExhibit No. 58. I'm going to zoom in if T can on this photoc.
I+ looks like in this photo, to the right there appears to be,
Jlike, a jar of pennies. Do you see€ that in the photo? Do want
F me to zoom in some? Can you see that?

A Yes. |

[

( Q Ckay. Can you see what's next -- there's like a

white box next to the pennies?

A Yes.
Q Do you recall what that is?
A T pelieve they were baby wipes.

MS. BEVERLY: Ckay. Nothing further.
THE COURT: Any recross, Mr. Jackscn?
MR. JACKSON: No.
THE COURT: All right. And I see no juror guestions.
Sergeant --
No Jjurocr questioﬁs?
{(No response.)
THE COURT: All right. 5Sergeant, thank ycou for your

|

testimony. FPlease do not discuss your testimony with anyone

—

else who may be called as a witness in this case.
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THE WITNESS: Thank you.

THE COURT: You are excused.

State, call your next witneéss.

MS. BEVERLY: Thank you, Your Honor. The State calls
Detective Ramireé.

MS. LAVELL: May I approach the clerk, Your Honor?

THE COURT: You may.

MS. LAVELL: Court's indulgence.

THE COURT: Okay.

And the clerk will administer the cath to the witness
in a moment.

{State's witness, Vicente Ramirez, sworn.)

THE CLERK: Thank you. And pleése state and spell
Yyour name.

TBE WITNESS: First name 1is Vicente. That's
V-i-c-e-n-t-e. Last name is Ramirez. That's R-a-m-i-r-e-z.

THE COURT: All right. Thank you. Please be seated.

MS. LAVELL: I can start while we're waiting for one
more exhibit.

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MS. LAVELL:

Q Sir, how are you employed?

A T'm employed by the Las Vegas Metropolitan Police
‘Department.

Q How long have you been with Metrg?
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A 19 years.

Q What is your current assignment?

A T am assigned to the Internet Crimes Agai;st_Children
detail.

Q Can you explain to the ladies and gentlemen of the

jury what duties you have as a detective assigned to the

Internet -- Internet Crimes Against Children detail.
A T basically conduct online investigations for any
child sexual exploitation. I also do forensic examinations

when we execute search warrants on computers which we believe
to contain child pornography.

Q Do you have any specialized training that allows you
to do forensic analysis of computers?

A Yes, I deo.

o Could you explain to the ladies and gentlemen what
that is.
A T basically have attended what's called EnCase.

and, for the reporter, that's capital E, lowercase N,
capital C, lowercase A, 5, B.

EnCase is a forensic software. 1 have also attended
another forensic software called FTK, which is Forensic
Toolkit, which is authored by Access Data. I also have
training in cell phone through Katana Forensics. Also, I have
training through Cellebrite, which is another phone analysis;

and Search, which is a government agency; NIPSEY, which is a
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Secret Service agency; and just various other forensic classes
and courses that 1've taken since 2000 —- basically 2000.

Q So in addition to the academic classes or the
structured classes and seminars you've taken to afford you the
ability to do forensic exams on phones -- you menticned -- and
on computers, do you also have on-the-job training in the sense
that you have actually done.analyses on computers and phones
throughout your career?

A Yes.

Q Are you trained to do forensic analysis of computers
in such a way as not to destroy any of the evidence contained?

A Yes,

Q¢  Could you —— well, and —- and I briefly would like
you to explain that to the ladies and gentlemen of the Jjury,
how that happens, and then we're going to talk about it
possibly a little bit more further down the road.

| A Ckay. Basically any time we receive any digital

device, be a computer, cell phone, external drive, thumb
drives, any type of disc that contains -- any storage device,
basically we have to make sure 1tL's write blocked. So ﬁe have
to make sure that the evidence that we receive when we receive
it, it will stay in the same fqrmat and the same -- same
capacity as when we got 1it.

So what the scftwares and write blockers allow us to

do is we can connect to that device. Let's just say it's a
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computer hard drive. connect to that computer hard drive
with my write blocker, which at this time I'm using what's
called a tableau write blocker. Then from there T connect that
to my forensic computer. o what it does is it copies that
Ildrive -— my target drive that i'm going to examine, it coples
that perfectly bit by bit and allows me to have a working copy
Iiso +hat that way the evidence is always going to stay as it
was, the state of whoever seiied it or if 1 seized it myself.
|{ 5o that working copy is where I'1l do all my -- all
my searches. Any work I do I'11 do it on that copy, but it'll
show exactly what was on that computer. |
Q So you have a working copy so that you're not
manipulating in any way the actual download from the -- in this
case, let's say computer?
ll B Correct.
Q And when you -—- when you're using your working copy,
F’is there any way that you can actually alter the images
unintentionally on the working copy”?
A No.
i Q 1 want Lo draw your attention to August of 2012. Did
I you receive several items in relationship to an individual by
llthe‘name of Joshua Shue with a request that you do a erensic
ljanalysis?
A Yes, I did.

J Q Specifically, aid you receive a blue Canon digital
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camera?

A Yes.
Q Did you receive an HTC smart cell phone?
B Yes.

o and did you receive a Sony VAIO laptop?

A Yes.

Q And in preparation for trial, have you reviewed your
reports in regards to some of these items?

A Yes.

Q TL.et's first talk about the blue Canon -- excuss me.
Let'é first talk about the HTC smart cell phone. Did you

examine that cell phone to see whether or not it contained any

information?
A Yes.
Q And what did you determine?

A That it did not contain the information that the
detective directed me to look for.

Q And in fact did it contain any infdrmation
whatsoever?

A No.

O Okay. If an individual wants to -- if an individual
is having issues with a cell phone‘—"'let's just say it's on,
and it freezes. Can you explain to the ladies and gentlemen of
the jury how one might rectify that issue.

A If your phone is just locking up and freezing —-- you
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know, a lot of times with iPhones, they'll drag, and they're
real slow. The best thing to do to restore it or to try to get
it —-

MR. JACKSON: 1I'm going to object. Is it relevant,
best way to restore a cell phone?

THE COURT: May I see counsel up here.

(Conference at the bench not recorded.)

MR. JACKSON: ~- the record reflect my objection on
it.

THE COURT: All right. The objection 1is overruled.

And, Ms. Lavell, you may proceed with your
guestioning.

MS. LAVELL: Thank you.

MR. JACKSON: Your Heonor, can 1 apprqach the bench
again? |

THE COURT: Sure.
MR. JACKSON: Just —— and last time.

(Conference at the bench not recorded.)
JBY MS. LAVELL:
F Q Okay. I think we were talking about how one might
fix an issue with a phone that has frozen in the on position.
ll A The easiest way would be to just remove the back
cover, remove the béttery, let it set for a second, and then
reinstall it -- the battery, and Jjust let it reset.

" 0 and in fact if one were to do that and it did reset,
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would there be any reason to wipe it at that point?

A No.

Q Now, let's say that it doesn't reset when you put the
battery off. It's still frozen. If it's still frozen, is one
even able to manipulate it sc that it can be wiped?

A No.

Q Okay. Let's talk about the blue Canon digital camera
that you were asked to conduct an analysis on. Were you —-
were you told specifically what you were looking for in regard

to that particular item of interest?

A Yes.

Q And what was that?

A Images of a -- a female, a young female.

Q And was'it an image of a picture up the female's
dress —-

A Yes.

0 —— skirt -- okay. Did you find the image on the blue

Canon digital camera?
A ] found it on a memory card, ves.

o And then that was associated with the blue Canon

digital camera?

A Yes.
Q Had it —-- had it been deleted or erased?
A Yes.

MS. LAVELL: Mr. Jackson, I'm going to approach with
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this.

MR. JACKSON: Thank you.

MS. LAVELL: You're welcome.

May T approach the witness?

THE COURT: ©Sure.
BY MS. LAVELL:

Q I'm approaching with what's been marked as Proposed

State's Exhibit 2. Can you take a lcok at this and tell me 1if

you recognize it.

A Yes, I do.
Q and how do you recognize this?
A This is the image that I exported for the detective

from the SD card from the camera.
Q Fro the camera --
MS. LAVELL:. Your Honor, at this time the State would
move to admit Proposed Exhibit Z.
THE COURT: Any objection?
MR. JACKSON: No objecfion.
THE COURT: All richt. 2 is admitted.
(State's Exhibit No. 2 admitted.)
MS. LAVELL: Thank you.
BY MS. LAVELL:
Q Now, in addition to examining the phone and examining
the camera, you were also asked to examine a Sony VAIO laptop,

correct?
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;i That's correct.

Q And this was also associated with the defendant
Mr. Shue?
A Yes.
Q Have you ever met the defendant Mr. Shue?
B No, I haven't.
] Ckay. So it's fair to say that you're -- you weren't

involved in the investigation itself beyond what you did with
the items of evidence and the query into those items?

it That's correct. |

0 Okay. Can you explain to the ladies and gentlemen -—-
now, you previously explained that you make a duplicate file so
that you're not in any way damaging the original that's on the
drive on the computer, correct? Did I understand that
correctly?

A Yes.

Q Okay. Once you do that, what's the first thing that
you did in relationship to this particular computer?

A once —— once -- they're called E01 files. Once the
files are —-- are completed, the first thing I lock at is to
make sure that those files verify, that the duplicate is an
exact copy of that. 5o it'll give me two numbers, and those
two numbers have to match exactly. Once I know that that file
verified, then I can go ahead and start conducting my searches.

Q Okay. And I'm going to stop you --
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MS. LAVELL: And approach with the Court's
permission?

THE COURT: Sure. You may move freely.

MS. LAVELL: Thank you, Your Honor.

MR. JACKSON: Thank you.
BY MS. LAVELL:

0 I'm showing you what's been previously admitted as

State's Exhibit 61. Can you take a look at Lhis.

Do you recognize this?

A Yes, I do.

D Is this the computer that you did the analysis on?
A Yes.

Q And if you centinue -- so once you make.sure that

they both mirreor one another, what's the next thing that you
do?

A That's when I start conducting my searches. At this
time, 1 started conducting image searches, and if I find any
images that are relevant to the case, I go ahead and start what
they call bookmarking. I start tagging them to show the
detective later for -— he can actually review it and see if
it's relevant to his case.

I also start bookmarking any video files. SohI'il
start reviewing all image files and all video files first. For
this type of case, it was strictly image files and video files.

Q and was it —— were you bookmarking and looking for
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images of young children specifically, given this particular
case?

A Yes.

Q So. in addition -- and we'll talk in & minute about
videc files, but when you open the coﬁputer and you're
i|analyzing it, do you determine if there's any subscriber
information or anything that identifies this particular
computer to a particular individual?

A Yes.

Q Did you find something in this case connecting this
Flcomputer to anvybody specifically?

A Yes.

Q And what was that?

yis What we -— we run a search for the computer name,
i just to start. So the computer was basically named to Josh
Shue. |

Q Okay. And anything in addition to the computer being
named to Josh Shue?

A T typically look for any images or anything that
shows, you know, that person in an image, you know, whether it
be a home picture or something that starts to tie that person
to that computer.

0 Did you have a picture of Joshua when you were doing

that?

A Detective Jaeger provided me with the images.
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I

Q And did you identify any images on the computer

that -— of the defendant Mr. Shue?
A Yes.
0 What were those images?
A I just -- home pictures, pictures of him and family.

I assumed that it was family members.

Q Ckay. S¢ in addition to photosrof the defendant,
images of the defendant -- and I'm presuming those were
appropriate photos?

A Yes.

Q Okay. Family photos?

A ramily photos.

Q You identified his name as well?

A Yes.

Q Now, you indicated that you bookmarked photos and

videos. Let's Ffirst talk about the photos. Can you explain to
the ladies and gentlemen of the jury where on the computer you
found photos.

yiy Photos, you know, typicaily are saved under My
Documents and under the user profile. You know, most people —-
unless they're going to name them something else -—- typically

just put them in My Pictures or My Videos or My Documents. 5o

most of these images, 1 believe --— without looking at the
report -- were under the user profile of Josh.
O And just s0 we're clear for the record, would it
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assist you if you reviewed your report --

FiS Yeah.

Q -- to determine where you spécifically found the
photos we're going Lo be talking about?

A Yes. |

Q Did you bring a copy of your report with you?

A I did of the videos but not of the phctos.

Q You did of the videos and not of the photos, okay.
21l right. So at this point you can't be a hundred percent
sure where the photos were on the computer other than the fact

that they were found on the computer associated with Mr. Shue?

A Correct.

Q I'm approaching with what's marked as State's -- and
if you'll just bear with me for a quick second -- State's
Proposed -- State's Proposed 3 through 11, and State's Proposed

75. Will you just briefly look at these and tell me if you

recognize these.

A Yes, I do.

Q Aﬁd how do you recognize these?

A Those were the images I bookmarked.
Q From the defendant's computer?

A | Correct.

MS. LAVELL: Your Honor, I would move to admit
State's Proposed 3 through 11, and State's Proposed 75.

MR. JACKSON: No objection.
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THE COURT: All right. Those will all be admitted.
(State's Exhibit Nos. 3 - 11 and 75 admitted.)
MS. LAVELL: Permission to publish?
THE COURT: You may.
BY MS. LAVELL:
Q This is State's Proposed 3. Is this one of the
images that you found?
A Yes.
Q State's Proposed 4, is this an image that you found

on the computer as well?

A Yes.
Q and what is this image of? I'm going to zoom cut .
A This is an image of what appears to be & boy under

the age of 16 nude in the shower exposing his penis and his

buttocks area.

Q State's 6, does this appear to be the same youndg man

laying prone on a bed exposing his penis?

A Yes.

Q State's 10, same young man?

A Yes. |

Q and are the rest of the photos that we just -- that I

approached you with similar in content?
A Yes.
Q So those were all made --— the only photos that you

bookmarked because the other photos presumably then were not
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photos that gave you any concern on the defendant's computer?

A Correct.
Q Tn addition to the photos, did you find any video
files?

A Yes, T did.

Q is the search for video files the same as the search
for photos?

A No.

Q So when you -- you explained earlier about making a
copy. Is that specific to video files?

A Everything will be on the computer. Everything -—-
you know, whether it's an image file, document-or video file,
they're all on that working copy. The way I get to them is
just different. For image files, it easier to go -~ they call
it a gallery, where the software displays them all to you. For
video files, basically you can look at all the extensions of
the fileﬁames.

In this case, a standard video file is called a, dot,
AVI. So once you go down your computer list, you just look for
any, dot, AVI, and typically if you've —- if you just put them
in alphabetical order, AVI will all 1list, vyou know, in a row.
So then once I do that, then I start to view each —-- each video
file.

Q and you did that in this case?

A Yes.
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9] And then you viewed the video files, and then you
bookmarked those that caused you concern?

A | Yes.

Q Did you then provide copies of those video files
either to Detective Jaeger or to the State?

A Yes.

Q I'm approaching with what's been marked as State's
Proposed Exhibit 1. Do you recogniie this flash drive?

A Yes.

C t Can vou explain to the ladies and gentlemen of the
jury what a flash drive 1is.

A Basically —— I typically call it a thumb drive. It's
nothing but a storage device. Tt just allows yocu to put any
eleétronic file onto that device so you can move it from one
device to another or store —— you know, backup storage. A lot
of people like to use them to back up all their pictures and
images.

Q Was the State provided with a very large drive
containing the video footage?

A Yes.

VQ And did Ms. Beverly make you aware that she had
transferred the images or the videos from the large drive that
you provided to this more accessible drive for the purposes of
trial?

A Yes.
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] 1 Q Did yecu have the opportunity this morning tc view the
E 2 videos on this drive and determine that they are true and

3 accurate copies of the videos on the drive that you provided?

. 4 ‘ A Yes,

! 5 Q And the videos on the driﬁe that you provided were
& true and accurate copies of the videos taken from the computer?
7 A Yes.

| 8 Q Or on the computer?
9 A Yes.

10 MS. LAVELL: Your Hcnor, I would move to admit

11 State's Exhibit 1.

i2 THE COURT: Any objection?

13 MR. JACKSON: No objection.
1 1 || THE COURT: All right. 1 is admitted.
é 15 (State's Exhibit No. 1 admitted.)
% 16 MS. LAVELL: ‘Thank you, Your Honor.

17 BY MS5. LAVELL:

A

18 Q All right. Let's talk a little bit about how or

@_ : 19 where you found the videos that are now stored on State's

20 Exhibit 1. Can you explain to the ladies and gentlemen of the

21 jury if they were.contained in folders?
% : 22 A Yes.
é 23 O Did the folders have names?
3 24 A Yes, there was two folders.
3 25 Q. All right. And what was one of the folders called?

KARR Reporting, Inc.
52

875




|
A

U

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

A

One of them was Yummm, which is like Y-m-m-m, and the

second was Hmmm, like H-m-m-m.

Q

A

Q
looked at

iy

Q

Wrong.

A
lowercase

Q

A

Q

Okay. And could it have been Y-u-m-m?

That's possible, vyes.

Ckay. Would it refresh your recollection if you
your report?

Yes.

Or it might -- may refresh my recollection. I may be

Is this the report you brought with you today?
Yes, it is. That's correct. 1It's capital Y, then
U—T—r—Tn .

And then the other is Hmmm?

Yes.

And in the files Yummm and Hmmm, it contained the

images that are now contained on this thumb drive?

A

Q

Correct.

Were these folders contained in a locatiocn where

you'd expect?

A

Q

A
Q
profile?

A

As a forensic person, yes.
Okay. And where was that?
They were contained under the user's profile.

All right. And what do you mean by the user’'s

Just, you know, documents and settings, users. So in
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the normal tree of a -—- a program.
0 Okay. Were they hidden?
A Yes.
MR. JACKSON: Objection. Leading.
THE COURT: Yes, don't --
MS. LAVELL: Okay.
BY MS. LAVELL:
Q Can you explain to the ladies and gentlemen of the
jury the path that you needed to take Lo specifically find

these videos?

A Once -- once I identify the videos, then I start
locking at the structure to see where those videos are at. 1In

that structure, it'll also tell me the description of that
folder. It'll give me the date and time that folder was
created, and it'll tell me the location of the folder.
And in this case, those files -- those twc folders

were in the proper directory, but they were hidden. Sc me as a
forensic person, you know, I can see it, but if it's a normal
ﬁser, they're not going to see it 1in the regular structure
because those files were hidden files.

Q 'And in order to hide a file, is that a conscious
decision someone makes, or does that just happen automatically?

A You have to go through a couple steps.

¢ and so you go through a couple of steps so that

thev're more difficult to find?
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il Correct.

C Do you recall the date the folders were created to
house these.images?

A The.Yummm folder I believe was created 6/1 of 2011,
and the Hmmm folder was created August 3ith of 2011.

C Now, having viewed the video files, did you notice
anything in regards to the time of the allegation of this
incident and the time and date stamp on the actual ﬁideo files

themselves?

iy Yes.
Q What was that?
pi) I noticed that a lot of the files had created --

created dates and modified dates that weren't consistent with

when the case actually, you know, occurred.

Q And in fact there were several that were years off —-
A Yes.

Q -— is that —— is that true?

A That's correct.

Q All right. Can you explain to the ladies and

gentlémen of the jury how the date and time stamp on a video
may contradict the evidence in terms of when the video was
actually taken.

A Basically, you typically have a created date, a
modified date and a last accessed date. If -- if T have a

computer and T move a file from somewhere else, if I move those
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images or files, any type of file, the created date‘and the
modified date typically stays the same, especially on, you
know, this type of file system. The last access means that
that's the last time that he opened it or he did something with
it.

So if those files weren't touched at all and they
were actually just moved, not copied, then those dates will
stay from wherever they were -- wherever they were made or
created originally. So if they were created on ancther
computer or on a video camera or something, whatever day and
time that device had, it will stay with the computer that I am
examining now.

O But that does not affect -- in other words, if I were
to view a video, 1f I were tc change the date stamp on a video
camera so that the time and date stamp on my videcs was not
when I was actually videcing, I can still view my video, and

that's still going to stay the same as it was set?

A The video will -- will -- it won't touch the video.
It just -- it could just change dates and times.

0] But not the time stamp and date stamp on the video
itself? 7

A No

Q Not when it was recorded?

A No

MS. LAVELL: Okay. Court's indulgence.
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lBY MS. LAVELL:

l Q Detective, I'm approaching you with what has been
previously admitted as State's 67. Can you take a look at this
item in the photo and tell me what that is.

A That looks -~ appears to be a video camera.

Q Are you able to tell whether or not that has the
capabilities of videotaping the source of videos that you
downloaded? T don't mean contentwise, but, I mean, that the
type of video that you downloaded.

A It appears to be because it has a USBR and & TV
output.

0 Ckay. Thank you. Just so I'm clear and that the

jury is clear -—— and I'm sure you were clear ——- the —-- if

\ someone’'s viewing a video and at the bottom or socmewhere on

that video it has the date and time as to when it was -- the

J day it was recorded and the time it was recorded, you indicated

that that's as a result of either someone not calibrating the

. : . : .
1v1deo camera to the current date and time or Just leaving it at

the manufacturer's date or possibly even recording it --

MR. JACKSON: 1I'm going to object to that question.

Il It's a compound question.

THE COURT: Ask your question z different way.

MS. LAVELL: All right.
BY MS. LAVELL:

Q Just to be clear about your testimony in regards to
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the date and time stamp on the physical video, did you just --
did you testify that that 1s something somecne sets?

MR. JACKSON: 1I'm going to object. Asked and
answered.

THE COURT: Ckay. Well, she's -- overruled.

Is that -- does someone necessarily set the time, or
could that be the time set by the manufacturer?

THE WITNESS: Both.

THE COURT: Okay.

THE WITNESS: It could be a default setiing.

THE COURT: Okay.

THE WITNESS: Or it could be a setting that was
adjusted by that person.

THEE COURT: Okay. And of course —- well, never mind.
1 withdraw my question.

BY MS. LAVELIL:

Q And just to be clear, someone can view that video,
and that's not going to affect that time stamp and that date
stamp as to when it was recorded?

A Correct.

MS. LAVELL: Pass the witness.

THE COURT: All right. Why don't we take ocur lunch
break.

So, ladies and gentlemen, we're going to go ahead and

take our lunch break until 2 o'clock. During the lunch break
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you're reminded that ycu're not to discuss the case or anything
else related —- ér anything related to the case with each other
or with anyone else. You're not to read, watch or listen to
any réports of or commentaries on the case, any person or
subject matter relating te the case. Don't do any independent
research by way of the Internet or any cther medium, and please
don't form or express an opinion on the trial.

If you would please place your notepads in your
chairs and follow the bailiff through the double doors, we'll
see you back at 2.

{Jury recessed 12:56 p.m.)

THE COURT: And then, detective, don't discuss your
testimony with any other witnesses during our break or with the
State beéause you haven't been crossed yet.

All right. Just.for Mr. Jackson's benefit, I
admonished the detective not to discuss his testimony during
the break, including with the State because he has not been
crocss—examined yet.

All right. I just want to -=

You can sit down, or you can be excused. You don't
really need to listen to this.

MS. LAVELL: You can go to lunch.

THE COURT: You're welcome to listen. I don't think
it has anything to do with you.

But, basically, to place on the record, during --.
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1 : MS. LAVELL: Your Honor, I am Sorry.

2 MS. BEVERLY: When is he due back?
3 MS. LAVELL: What time does he need to be back?
E z THE COURT: 2.
5 | MS. BEVERLY: 2, okay.
) THE COURT: During Ms . Reverly's opening statement,

7 she was about to show some exhibits. Mr. Jackson objected.

8 They approached the bench. T told Ms. Beverly that the better
9 practice is to show the exhibits to defense counsel that you're

10 going to use in your PowerPoint so that defense counsel has an
11 opportunity to review those and make objections, and the Court
12 can issue a ruling -- a preliminary ruling before you show them
13 to the jury. Ms. Beverly said she would voluntarily not use

14 the PowerPoint.

15 So my understanding is none of those exhibits were

16 shown to the jury, correct?

17 MS. BEVERLY: Correct. What was shown to the jury

- 18 was No. 1, the picture up the skirt, and I put that in there dn

19 a good-faith basis that it will be introduced.

20 THE COURT: Okay.
21 MS. BEVERLY: Secondly, there were also —— I'm
22 SQrry —- two sort of like screen-shots photos from cne of the

23 videos that has now been admitted into evidence. In addition

24 rlto that, there were —-

; 25 TEE, COURT:  And the picture of the defendant's face.
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MS. BEVERLY: Correct. 1In addition, there were two
other photos of unidentified.boys, which I did stop conce we had
the bench conference.

THE COURT: Ckay. And for the record, Mr. -— and the
record will be clear I think. Mr. Jackson didn't ébject to
those earlier pictures. Sco that was withdrawn.

Now, then there was a big stack of‘pictufes shown to
Mr. Jackson, and he said, I never --— wanted to look at them. I
said, Fine. Then he said, Well, I've never seen these before.
We came up to the bench.

And just going forward, you know, I wculd ask that
before you make ah objection to suggest to the Jjury that
there's been some kind of viclation of disclosure that you look
at the exhibits to make sure that it's really something you
haven't seen before.

Going forward, I want the State to show all of the
items that they intend to use as exhibits to Mr. Jackson so, A,
he knows whether or not it's something that has been disclosed
in discovery, and, B, he can iook at them, and we don't have to
sit here. So I think going forward —-- you know, 1f you have
4000 photos, and you're only going to use 15 of them, I think
Mr. Jackson —— in his defense -- does have a right to know
which 15 photos you're going to be using.

So going forward, that,land then 1 would just ask

+hat in lieu of objections like, you know, I haven't gotten
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them, just approach the bench on that, and we'll try to resoclve
it up here.

Finally, there was an objection regarding the witness
that just left the bench testifying about how to -- if your
phone is stuck, how to get it unstuck, and there was an
objection on relevancy, and based on the conversation at the
bench I overruled the objection because the State indicated,
well, that was going to come in. It was going to be tied up
through the statements that the defendant made.

And so, Mr. Jackson, would you like to make a
complete record on that objection?

MR. JACKSON: Well, T thought it was premature,
number one, for it coming in until we -- until it does get tied
up, and the other statement I made at the bench was that I
wanted bench conferences recorded because it's hard for me to
remember all the objections T make, and that's my own weakness,
and I apologize for that.

The other thing is that I find that if I need to make
an appeal, if the bench conferences aren't recorded, I don't
have an adéquate record. That's both for Nevada Supreme Court
and for Federal Court, and the Court says we don't do it that
way in this court, and maybe for logistical reasons or other

reasons, but I -—-

THE COQURT: And just so you know, it's not that we're-

hiding anything, Mr. Jackson —-
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1 MR. JACKSON: No. No, I don't --—

Z THE COURT: —- number one --
3 MR) JACKSON: I don't imply the Court is --
I 4 THE COURT: Can I make my record, Lo0?
5 MR. JACKSON: Well, I thought -- I wasn't done with
) | my --
7 THE COQURT: Well, I'm interrupting you.
| 8 MR. JACKSON: All right.

pUS

THE COURT: And I get to do that.

10 The reason we do it is because -- you know, my

11 feeling is that some departments utilize court reporters still,
12 and when you have a court reporter, you don't get & recording
13 of the bench conference, and number two, Just logistically,

14 we've got the white noise on —-—

15 Right, Janie?

16 —— and if you try to record it with the white nocise,

17 you don't hear anything, and I 1iké to play thée white noise

3 18 because otherwise the jury can hear what we're saying up here,
19 which defeats the point of a bench conference, and even with
20 the white noise, sometimes they can hear. So that's why we

21 don't record them.

i 22 My understénding of the case law is as long as wve
1 23 incorporate the bench conferences on the record they don't need
E 24 to be recorded. You can certainly supplement anything that was

i 25 said at the bench conference, and, you know, I keep track of
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them, and ii's alsc reflected in the record itself because
it'll be, Can we approach the bench. Sc that's going to be
actually in the written transcript, as well as, Conference at
the bench. So that is where we are.

You know, it's my belief that it's more important to
play the white noise so that the jury doesn't hear what we're
talking about up here than to record the bench conference, and
in our -- according to our expert on the JAVS system, who 1is
our court reporter Ms. Clsen, you can't —— you can't really
have it both ways. Sc that's why we do it the way we do it.

MR. JACKSON: Well, for the record, I know that some
Courts do record their bench conferences.

THE COURT: I know Judge Leavitt, for example, does
record the bench conferences.

MR. JACKSON: And I also believe just because some
Courts don't deesn't necessarily make it right not to do it.
Sc my request is that we do it and find the technology to be
able to do it as thé trial continues because I think it is
important for the record, and I'll state that again, and I
realize this Court is in charge of this court. So this Court
has the power to decide not to record the bench conferences,
but it's over my objection.

THE COURT: Well, Mr. Jackson, is ‘there anything that
you want to add to what the Court has just now placed on the

record in terms of the discussions that have occcurred at the
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bench?

Cne of your objections Qas sustained. Your -- you
were told not to make speaking objections. So that really
wasn't sustained or not sustained because it wasn't an
objection to the evidence, and your cbijection on relevancy
grounds was overruled --

MR. JACKSON: I'll make -- I'm sorry. I didn't mean
to interrupt.

Yes, I would make —-- that I feel somewhat intimidated
about making objections if I can't make speaking chjections
because the problem is, when I see something that's
objectionable, if I can't make an objection spontaneously,
it -- every time I ask %to approach the bench, I think that the
jury may be in some way influenced against me or my clients.

Now, making a simple objection, which is what I'm
accustomed to after decing this for 40 years, which is
appropriate -- for instance, the leading questicns the
prosecution has been engaging in need to be responded to
quickly before something comes cut that is clearly improper.

THE COURT: Well, no one's telling you, Mr. Jackson,
to not make objections or to not say, Objection, hearsay.
Objection, relevancy or whatever, and on the one about the
pheone, I didn't know what the relevancy was, and I didn't want
the State to be allowed to say in front of the jury, Well, this

is how it's relevant. So I had them approach the bench.
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That's why we did it that way.

Certainly, you know, A, you know, the general rule is
you don't make speaking cbjections. So I don't understand why
that would be intimidating to .you after 40 years of practice,
number cne, and number two, no one is tellinglyou not to make
objections. For example, Obijecticn, hearsay; objection, not
provided, you know -- not previcusly provided; cbjection,
discovery violation, something like that. What we don't want
is speaking cobkjeclions, you know, and that's the generél rule,
and that should be observed.

Now, I know we all in our practice have made speaking
objectieons in the past. I'm just asking you to try to refrain
from doing that. So I don't know why you feel intimidated by
what is considered, I think, widely and universally to be good
practice. Again, you're more than welcome to make objection,
relevance; objection, what have you.

Now, like I said, I asked the State to approach
because I didn't see the reievance of it, and they explained
the relevance, and then I thought, okay, well, rather than make
this detective come back after they've tied it in -- 1 Think
that evidence is likely to be admitted, and so let's let him
testify to this right now. 50 that was the reason I asked you
to apprecach on that.

Typically —-— you know, there were other objections,

Mr. Jackson, that were contempcraneously sustained, and the
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State was told, That's leading, or, Rephrase your question. So
it's not like you're approaching the bench every other second.

MS. BEVERLY: Judge, can I —-

THE COURT: Althbugh it may certainly feel like that.

Yes?

MS. BEVERLY: Can I make a record of just a couple of
things. First, it's some scheduling issues, and then I Jjust
want to be clear about the videos in this case. There were a
hundred and forty videos found. Now, the videos that are now
admitted into evidence are only the videos listed in the
individual counts in the complaint, which Mr. Jackson has had
knowledge of the whole time, and that's why we were
specifically trying to makersure that Detective Ramirez did not
say how many videos actually were found.

Now, T know that you had just said that you want us
to go through it with Mr. Jackson; however, in terms ocf the
videos, he's known which videos are going to be used because
they were specifically listed‘in the complaint. There's no
other videos that we're using. We're not even going to mention
now many videos so as not Lo prejudice Mr. Shue. 5o 1 just
want to make that clear that that's what's on the disc.

THE COURT: Okay.

MS. BEVERLY: And then additionally, Your fonor, we
do have to in some ways —— LO protect Mr. Shue, lead in scme

ways so they will not say the actual extent of this case
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because it's much larger, especially with victim Hazel, how
this investigation started. We don't want her getting into
cther things.that were occurring.

THE COURT: Right. Aﬁd some of those were —-- I think

some of the irrelevant information was the subject of a motion

in limine.

MS. BEVERLY: Exactly.

THE COQURT: So obviously the State can't, you know,
ask a guestion. What I would say theough is on your police
officer witnesses, certainly as part of your pretrial you
should be telling them, Don't talk about this. So even if you
do ask an open-ended questicn, they should be pretrialed to
know that they're not supposed to talk about the other files,
and they're not supposed to talk about anything that the Court
has' already said they're not sppposed to talk about.

MS. BEVERLY: Absolutely.

THE COURT: So I would count on you tc make sure you
briefed them. These are experienced police officers. So
there's no reason they should be blurting out something that is
irrelevant or the Court has already ruled is not coming in.

MS. BEVERLY: Absolutely, Your Honor. And we only
have two mofe witnesses, DetectiVe Jaeger this afternoon, and
then Hazel.

THE COURT: And vou're going to play the tape with

Detective Jaeger?
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MS. BEVERLY: Nog, with Hazel.

THE COURT: Okay- | |

MS. BEVERLY: And so the problem is though, Judge, 1s
that last time when we had the evidentiary hearing, she was
able to'bring her social worker with her because she's
essentially the only person this girl has, and so the social
worker is not available to bring Hazel and to be with her
during this process until tomorrow at 9:30, when I believe
we're going tc start tomorrow.

THE COURT: I think we're starting at 10 or 10:30.

MS. BEVERLY: ©Oh, 10. I'm sorry. So we wanted to
finish up Detective Ramirez today, put on Detective Jaeger, but
we were asking the Court's permission if we could start with
Hazel in the morning. I don't want her testimony interrupted.

THE COURT: Well, it's already -- I mean, we're

coming back from lunch at 2. So probably we wouldn't be

finished with those other witnesses until about 4 anyway.

MS. BEVERLY: Okay. Thank you. 1 Jjust wanted tq -
SO.

THE COURT: I mean, my only concern wouid be if it's
like 3:30 or something. That's kind of early to take the
preak, but it looks like we're probably going to be going later
than that.

T mean, Mr. Jackson, do you have a lot of cross for

thig officer?
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MR. JACKSON: You know, probably less than half an

Ihour. 1'm not going to -- 1 don't think I'm going to Cross him

very intensely, no.

THE COURT: Okay.

MS..BEVERLY: And if necessary --

THE COURT: And then what about Detective Jaeger?
That's the statement and everything.

MS. BEVERLY: 1'm sure he's going to be crossing him.

MR. JACKSON: It's going to be longer with Detective
Jaeger --

THE COURT: okay.

MR. JACKSON: -~ than with this ctfficer.

THE COURT: Okay. So, I mean, basically, as long as
it's like'4 or 4:30ish I'm fine ending, you know, a little bit
early. I don't want to end super early because that's a waste
of the jury's time, buﬁ it doesn't look like we're going to be
there. S0 ——

MS. BEVERLY: and if needed, both of us --

and thank yocu to Mr. Jackson for providing his
instructions very early-

{'ve also provided mine to the Court and to
Mr. Jackson. So whether that's tomorrow or Thursday morning,
we'll be ready to discuss jury instructions.

MR. JBCKSON: I might have one or two more

instructions, but I've got to get back to my office to prepare
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it, based on the testimeny and whatever, but at most one or two
more.

~THE COURT: All right. Well, okay. So we'll deal
with that, and then why don't we go to lunch because we've
already cut into our lunchtime.

MS. BEVERLY: Thank you, Judge.

MS. LAVELL: Thanks, Judge.

{(Proceedings recessed 1:11 p.m; to 2:04 p.m.)

{Outside the presence of the jury.)

THE COURT: All right. One thing to place on the
record. 1I've decided to grant Mf. Jackson's reguest to record
the bench conferences although I don't think there's any legal
authority reguiring me to do so; however, my court recorder
informs me that we need to have the JAVS technicians come up to
set it up before we can do that. We contacted -- or she rather
contacted them over the lunch break. They're in ancther
department right now. It takes about 15 to 20 minutes to do
that.

So we're going to get started, and then when we take
our break, hopefully he can come and set that up, but we're
going to get started because, és I said, it's my opinion that
it we are not legally required to record those conferences.

So, Kenny, bring the jury in, and get the witness,
and we'll put him back on the witness stand.

MS. LAVELL: Thank you, Ycur Honor.
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MS. BEVERLY: Thank you.

THE COURT: And I'm sorry. Reiresh my memory. Had

you finished direct?

MS. BEVERLY: Yes, Your Honor.
(Jury entering 2:07 p.m.}
THE COURT: All right. Court is now back in session.

And, Mr. Jackson, you may resume your

cross-examination of the witness.

MR. JACKSON: Thank you, Your Honor.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. JACKSON:

Q

A

Q

Officer, did you have a nice lunch?

Yes.

Good. You've been an officer with the Metropolitan

Police Department for 19 years; is that correct?

A

Q

That's correct.

And what was your education before you became a

police officer?

A I graduated from UNLV with a Bachelor's degree in
Education.

Q Did you have any training in scientific matters
before —- while you weré studying at UNLV?

A Just pretty much education, biclogy, chemistry, the
standard —--

Q Did you study cell phone technology?
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& Not at UNLV.

Q Now, you —-- you've gone to various schools to learn
basically your craft as a police officer; ig that correct?

A Correct.

Q and all of those schools were basically run or the
training was by other police officers or trainers in police
departmeﬁts; isn't that correct?

A For police work or forensic analysis.

Q Okay. But most -- most of your instructors were —-
were connected with law enforcement; would that be fair tc say?

A Some schocls.

QO Well, were there any that were run by just say

academic people other than FBI or the California Institute of

Law Enforcement or some other law enforcement agency, something

like that?

A Yes.

Q Tell me which ones.

A EnCase is a private entity. That is -- the last
instructor was —— he's a German national. He's the lead

instructor for all the forensic cases, and then Katana is a
private-owned firm also. He's Shawn Morrissey. He's not law
enforcement. FTK, which is Forensic Toolkit, is also a private
company.

Q Now, they have a lot of —- they have a lot of

contracts with law enforcement, do they not, EnCase and FTK?
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A They only sell their product to law enforcement and

private.
0 Okéy. Does Metro have contracts with EnCase and FTK?
A No.

Q No. Where do they get their cell phones and their

radio eguipment and their computers and --

yit We order the software from those private companies --

Q Oh.

A -- but not -- we don't have ccntracts with them. I
mean --

Q A1l right. Well, vou do -

A --. 1 do a purchase order and reguest training, but
that's it. |

Q All right. So you do pay -~ Metro does pay some
money to these companies; is that correct?

A For my training, vyes.

Q All right.

A Actually, can I correct that? Most of my training is
through a government grant.

o All right. So the government pays for your training
because they want you to get trained as well as you can; is
that right?

A Correct.

Q Now, you work cilosely of course with the district

attorney's office; is that right?
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A Correct.

o How many times have you testified as an expert
witness in the last 19 years that you've been working with
Metro?

MS. LAVELL: Your Honor, I'm going to object as to
relevance.

THE COURT: OQverruled.

You can answer.

THE WITNESS: I couldn't tell you how many times. I
do also testify in Federal Court. Last week was the last time;
I did a federal indictment.

BY MR. JACKSON:

0 Well, approximately, is it more than 10, more than a
huﬁdred, less than 50?7 You know, I mean, a rough idea.

A More than 50.

Q All right. So you testified in court at least 30
times over the last 19 years. So five or 10 times a year would
be a fair estimate, would you say?

A A little more than that, correct.

Q all right. Now —-— and would it be falr to say you
almost always testify at the request of law enforcement?

A Law enforcement or a federal agency, yes.

Q a1l right. And the federal agency you testify for

would usually be a law-enforcement-related agency; is that

Icorrect?
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Jiy FRI, vyes.

Q All right. So you don't ever testify —— have you
ever testified for a defense -- someone for the defense; is
that right?

it Testified for the defense?

Q Yes.

A No.

Q So if I wanted to subpoena you as an expert witness
to use your expertise as an expert about cell phones or your
expertise about computers, you would respectfully decline?

A T would forward that to the district attorney's
office and allow them to make that decision.

Q So you -- you basically work for them; is that right?

A No, but any time that I testify it has to be through
a subpoena. Sc if it's approved through the district
attorney's office, then that's fine.

0 They'd have to approve it if I wanted you to —--

A As far as I'm ccncerned, ves.

o Now, in this particular case, when you were called to
analyze some —— SOME information that was seized pursuant to a
search warrant, you were trying to be as careful and accurate
as vou could be; is that correct?

A Correct.

Fi Q You were trying to follew all the protoceols you'd
heen taught in analyzing this information; is that correct?
I‘ : KARR Repcrting, Inc.
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A Ceorrect.

@] Now, you were —— 1 think there were three items you
said you analyzed fully, that cone was & laptop, one was a cell
phone, and one was a camera; is that right?

A Correct.

0 Those were the three main items you -— you took and
analyzed in your forensic laboratory; is that right?

A Correct.

Q Was that at the Metropolitan Police Department-where
you did that analysis? |

A Yes.

Q Now, were there other police cofficers around while
you were doing that?

it The only people that are around the area are the
pecple that are in my unit.

Q And how many people were there?

A When I'm actually doing the actual analysis, none.
have my own forensic office.

Q Did anybody -—- nc one aséisted you in making this
analysis or came in while you were doing it or --

A No.

o] And how long did it take you To analyze all three
items that you analyzed?

A I couldn't actually put a time frame on that.

Q Was it a day? Was it two hours? You know, did it
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take more than a day?

A Yes.

Q So you spent more than several days going through
these items?

L Correct.

0 Ckay. Did you have any other cases you were working
on during that time?

A Yes.

G So you didn‘t work on this one continuously for eight
hours. You were working on other cases during this time?

2 Correct.

Q There's no possibility that you mixed up one case

from another while you were looking at the other cases, is

there?
A Not possible.
0] Wwhen you have one case, you set it down, and then

pick up another case or how does that work?

A I have three forensic workstations. So if I have a
case, 1 typically -- if it's a huge case, I'll work it on a
certain machine that I have; and if it's a smaller case, I'1l1

work it on a different machine. 5So I have three different

machines that —— forensic machines that I conduct my exams on.
Q Now, when you finish one case —-- you say you've got
several cases, three different work stations -- do you set the

one case down and then lock up the files, or do you just leave
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it out there on the table?

A No one can get intc my computer..
0 No, that wasn't the question. When you finish
working on the three exhibits you have, do you -- do you —- do

you lock them up before you leave the room?

A The electronic files are on my computer, which is
locked.
Q Okay. If you go to the bathroom, no one can get in

your room?

A Nobody can get in my computér, no.
Q can they get in the room that the items are kept in?
A If you're talking ebout items as far as -- wait.

Okay. Distinguish items. Okay. Because there is --

Q Well, there were three exhibits —-
A Hold on, please.
Q One exhibit was -- let me just rephrase the question.

T pelieve you testified to three exhibits. One was a cell

phone. One was a laptop. and what was the third one?

A Um ——

0 The camera, right?

A Camera.

Q Now, those three exhibits, did you keep them loccked

up when you left the room, or were they just laying on the
table —— a table, like something like this or a desktop or --

A Once I get my working copy, once I do my acquisition
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and T haﬁe my working copy, that original piece of evidence
gets locked up. So now that evidence is no longer out in the
open or open to the public or open to anybody, even in my
office.

e All right. ©Now, but in order to use it you have to

take it out of the lockbox or whatever you keep it in, right?

A No.

Q Well, how do you use it when it's locked up? I don't
understand.

A Oncé I do —

Q I'm computer illiterate. S0 help me out.

B No problem. Let's just say if I was geoing to acquire

this. I go ahead and do the acquisition on this, and I have my
working copy on my computer. I no longer need this. I ne

longer need the original evidence. That original evidence is

back and locked up and done. I never —— I never need to touch
it again.
Q Once you've got it on the disc. But how long did it

take you to get it on that disc, to download everything and get
everything transferred to the disc?

A It all depends on the size. So let's just say —-- if
you had a 250-gig hard drive, let's just say it takes three

hours.

Q All right. So you spent the first three hours

transferring everything to the disc?
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Correct.

Q Now, you're sayilng nc one can get access Lo your
“ computer?
A Correct.
Q Fven if the -- people can get in that room, right?

Other people have access tO the room?

A

Q

computer

Sure.

Are there people in your unit that know how to hack a
?

Two.

Some people are experts in computers in your unit,

Right.

So it's not completely true thal no one would know

now to get into your computer; is that right?

A

Q

A

once my

Q

A

Q
cell pho

A

If they did, I would know.
They're not smart encugh to fool you; is that right?
No, we all work as a team, and they all know that

computer is doing an acquisition —-- they can see that

Jit’s doing an acguisition, and they're not going to touch it.

That's what you believe?

That's what I know.

Now, were you ever asked to do an analysis of any
nes that Hazel Iral owned or had possession of?

I Gon't know who owned them, but I was given some
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cell phones in this case.
Q The question was: Were you ever asked to analyze any

cell phones of Hazel Iral? Did anyone tell you, This is Hazel

Iral's phone?

yil They did not tell me whose they belonged to.
0 Okay. You testified to some pictures of some

unidentified males that you downlcaded from your computer,

some -- two of which were commitfing sexual acts; 1s that‘
correct?

yi) Correct.

Q When you discovered those, you bookmarked them for

Detective Jaeger; is that correct?

A Correct.

O  Now, did you make any attempt to identify the
so-called unidentified males?

a I typically send any of those images to the National
Center for Missing and Exploited Children, and they're --
they're the ones that will tell me if those have been -- 1if
those images have been identified as a true victim, a possible
victim or ﬁot.

Q Did you get a positive response identifying them?

A I have not received a response from the National
Center for Missing and Exploited Children.

Q Was there aﬁy other response identifying those

children so that it gave you any clue as Lo who they were?

KARR Reporting, Inc.
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A Can I speak to counsel?

THE COURT: No.

MS. LAVELL: May we approach?

MR. JACKSON: HNo, you can't speak to counsel. That's
improper.

MS. BEVERLY: Can we approach —-

THE COURT: I said no. Let's —-—

MS. LAVELL: May we approach?

MR. JACKSON: Your Honor ——

THE COURT: You can approach the bench. I said
already he can't speak to couﬂsel.

(Conference at the bench notrrecorded.}
| THE COURT: Go ahead, Mr. Jackson.

BY MR. JACKSON:

Q Just a simple yes c¢r no question. Are there any
police reports regarding those photos, 3 through 97 Just a
simple yes or no.

A Yes.

MR. JACKSON: All right. Your Honor, may we apprecach
the bench again?
THE COURT: Sure.
(Conference at the bench not recorded.).
BY MR. JACKSON:
Q Officer, in your analysis of the -—- what was secured

during the search warrant -- you did get a laptop computer, and
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when you- got that, which was the first item you processed? Was
it the cell phone? Was it the laptop, or was it the camera?

A The SD card from the camera.

0 All right. And you found, I guess, one what wouldrbe
considered incriminating photc on that 5D card, and that was
the picture that was admitted. I think it was State's
Fxhibit 1 showing —- the picture taken apparently under thg
skirt of a female person; is that correct?

pat Correct.

Q And on the laptocp, you found what appeared to be

videos of a female person; is that right? &and also a male

subject —-- a young male subject; is that right?

A Yes. |

¢ Now, when yocu examined the laptop in your forensic
laboratory -- before you examined it, did you process the

laptop for fingerprints?
A No.

0 Now, you have the capacity to do that in your

forensic laboratory, didryou not?

B I could call ID.

Q All right. So that was always an option; is.that
correct?

A It's not an option that we use but, yes.

Q A1l right. Now, was the -- do you know if the nQrmal

procedure would ke to preserve an item, like a laptop, so it
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could be processed for fingerprints?

A If we're seizing any items of digital evidence, the
only evidence that's going tc be preserved is the digital
evidence.

0 Well, now, scmetimes -- 1n your training, you —- you
have studied fingerprint technology in your police science,

have you not?

A No.

0 You haven't?

A No.

Q VIS it -- do you know whether or not it's possible to

1ift fingerprints from a computer screen?

A Yes, you can.

Q All right. 8o you believe that's possible?

A Yes.

Q Now, it's also possible for more than one perscn to
use a computer. Isn't that possible?

. Yes.

9] And if you had the fingerprints of different people
on a computer screen, that might suggest that at least more

than one person had at least handled that computer; is that

correct?
A Yes.
9] and I presume you also didn't take any fingerprints

off either of the other items, either the camera or the cell
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phone; 1is that correct?

A Correct.

Q You weren't asked to by Detective Jaeger; 1is that
correct?

A Correct.

Q And yoﬁ didn't make any attempts to preserve them in

such a way that fingerprints wouldn't be smudged or anything
like that?
A No.
MR. JACKSON: I have no further guestions at this
time. 1 reserve the right to recall him if necessary.
THE COURT: That's fine.
Redirect.
MS. LAVELL: Thank you.
REDIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MS. LAVELL:
0] Detective, you are a detective with the Las Vegas
Metropolitan Police Department, correct?
A Correct.
o You're not a computer expert that hires out and
testifies for whichever side wants them to testify?
A Cofrect.
0] So your job is when —- when Metro detectives lccate
digital scorts of informatidn, they send it to your unit for you

to analyze?
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A Correct.

Q As a Metro detective?

A Correct.

0 Part of a larger investigation?

A Correct.

Q And so like a lot of police officers and detectives,

you testify at criminal trials for the State; is that correct?

A Correct.

Q Isn't it true that it's Metro and other police
agencies that submit the criminal complaints or reports against
the defendants?-

A Correct.

Q You work in -- specifically your expertise, 1if you

will, is forensic analysis of digital eqguipment?

A Cbrrect.
Q You don't work in the latent-print lab?
J A No.
' 0] You don't lift prints?
A No.
(J ¢] Are police cofficers the individuals that do that or
civilians?
’J A Civilians.
o} Okay. So you don't have any trainiﬁg in that area?
J A No.
F Q Would it be you -- as the forensic examiner, would 1t
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be up to you to determine whether or not latents should be

lifted or up to somebody else involved in the investigation?

A That would be whoever the lead detective 1s 1in that
investigation at the -- at the scene.
Q So if Detective Jaeger has been identified as the

lead detective, then it would be up to him to determine whether

or not he believed it was necessary to have latent prints

lifted?
A Correct.
Q Is it fair to say, if he had believed it was

riecessary that would've happened before these ltems even made
it to you?

A Correct .

Q Counsel was asking you a lot of guestions about
whether or not people have access to your office, to your
computer, whether or not you have hackefs working for you, and
is hacker really a fair definitionrof the law enforcement
officers that are working in the computer anélysis?

A No.

Q Okay. But you do have people that are capable, like
yourself, to get into other people's computers?

A Yeah, well, I mean, we do network intrusion, and we
have units that do network intrusion, but it's usually to find
out who's intruding on --

Q Law enforcement?

KARR Repcrting, Inc.
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A ——- law enforcement agencies or, you know, large
companies that get intruded by hackers.

Q But are you aware of anybody within your unit that
goes around hacking into other detective's computers?

A No.

Q For the purposes of planting evidence or altering
evidence?

A No.

Q and you indicated 1f somebody had in fact gotten intoc
your computer, you would be aware of that?

A Absolutely. |

Q How is that possible?

A One, I would —- my acguisition would have fajiled, and
then when -- when -- at the end, jt's in the verification
ijphase, and I have a acquisition number and then a verification
numbexr . Sorif anything -- even if my, say, power went out, and
IJit -- the acquisition-stopped, it's going to -- it's not going
to match. So 1 know that that is not a clean acquisition of
Iithe device that I'm acquiring.

Q and you testified earlier that you did in fact have a
H clean acqguisition?
Correct.

A
" Q S0 there was no interference?
A No.

Q

T'm going to approach you again -— I'm going to

“ ' KARR Reporting, Inc.
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approach you again with -- bear with me -- State's 3 through 11

and 75. I'm going to ask you to lock through those one more

“Lime.
Do you need your glasses? Were you reaching for
glasses?
A I waé geing to, but 1 can see big pictures. I
just -- just little letters I can't.

Q ‘Okay. Can you tell py looking at these pictures how

many different individuals are depicted in these photos?

A Three.

Q and so is it fair to say that there are multiple
photos of more or -— MOIE or —- one or more of the individuals?

A Yes.

Q I am publishing State's 3. Can you see that on your
screen?

A Yes.

Q Asidé from the young man that appears to be

performing oral sex on the other younq man, does everybody
depicted in these photos —- what age does everybody depicted in
these photos appear to be?

MR. JACKSON: Objecticn. The pictures speak for
themselves.

THE COURT: Overruled.

BY MS. LAVELL:

Q Based on your training and experiehce and the fact

KARR Reporting, Inc.
90

813



JRR N

10
11
12
i3
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

that vou sadly observe these sorts of pictures --

MR. JACKSON: Your Honor, I cbject to her --

THE CCURT: Sustained as to the --

MR. JACKSON: -- characterizing it to sadly.

THE COURT: Don't editorialize.

MS. LAVELL: Right.

BY M5. LAVELL:

Q vou see a number of these pictures through the course
of your career?

A Correct.

¢ Can you estimate the age of the individuals depicted
in the photos with the exception of the individual on his . |
knees?

MR. JACKSON: With all due respect, I object to him
giving an estimate on the age. Anyone on the jury can make an
estimate on the age as well as this officer. He's --—

THE COURT: That's overruled. It goes to the --

MR. JACKSON: It doesn't —- he hasn't had any extra
training on age, as to anybody else.

THE COURT: Lay a better foundation, Ms. Lavell.

BY MS. LAVELL:
Q As part of your duties, you indicated that you

were -- you do forensic exams, and tell me the title of your

unit one more time.

A Internet Crimes Against Children.
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Q o is it fair to say that when you are bookmarking
various photos or videos in all of your investigations, what
are you looking for?

A I'm looking for any -— any images of & child being
sexually expleoited, under the age cof 16.

8] apd based -- so if you in fact bookmarked these
photos, you pookmarked them because they appear to you to be
under the age of 167

A Correct.

0 and just to be clear, again, on State's 3, do both of

these individuals appear to pbe under the age of 167

A The male that's standing appears to be under age 16.

Q So the male that is on his knees appears to be older
than 167

A T can't really see enough of him to tell, but to me

personally, T would say, ves, that hé's -—
Q But you book --—
THE COURT: Don't speculate if you can't see enough.
MS. LAVELL: Yes.
BY MS. LAVELIL:
0 But specifically you bookmarked this photo --
A For the -— for the male standing.
MS. LAVELL: Nothing further.
THE COURT: Any recross?

MR. JACKSON: Just briefly.
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|| RECROSS-EXAMINATION
BY MR. JACKSON: |
Q Have you had any medical training?
Il 2 I worked sexual abuse before. So we would go to the

child symposium.

Q Have you worked in a doctor’s office?
FJ A For sexual abuse cases, YE&sS.
Q - Which doctor's office did you work in?
o Dr. Zabeegian [pheonetic], and that's at the -- at the

lichild sexual abuse office in Sunrise Hospital.

Q What was your Jjob there?

B Basically to do forensic exams for sexually abﬁsed
P children.

Q Were you paid by the doctor?
it A No.

0 So you weren't working in the doctor's office ——

A Not working for him --—
| Q0 okay.

yiS __ put I'm working at their office.

Q Byt you weren't being paid by the doctor‘as -— as in

part of his medical staff?

A No.

Q All right. 3o you weren't a ?hysician or physician's
assistant?

A No.
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MR. JACKSON: I have no further questions.

THE COURT: Anything else, Ms. Lavell?

MS. LAVELL: ©No, Your Honor. . Thank you.

TEE COURT: Any guestions for this witness?

All‘right. May I see counsel at the bench, please.

{(Conference at the bench not recorded.)

THE COURT: All right. Detective, we have a number
of juror questions up here. I'm just going to ask them in no
particular order.

Do you know if the computer was registered to
defendant?

THE WITNESS: 1In the registry file, the owner -- the
registered owner name came back tc¢ Josh Shue.

THE COURT: It says, Parties having access to laptop,

were user login -— how many —-- what was the number of user

' logins?

THE‘WITNESS: User accounts, I only saw public. 1
would have to say two.

"THE COURT: Okay. Were you able to ascertain who the
other user was?

THE WITNESS: No.

THE COURT: ©Okay. If other users use the laptop,
what was the user's usage log time?

THE WITNESS: Typically we don't go for a log time

becéuse he had Windows 7. So since he had Windows 7 he had
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just updaﬁed that, and we can't tell exactly —- like, exactly
what day he updated, but anytime you have a new operating
system it typically clears out a lot of those.

TEE COURT: What was the download date of the videos
to the computer?

THE WITNESS: Download dates, there was -—= there was
various download dates because there was various files. There
was numerous files. So they did vary, and again, you've got to
remember that once you move files, the date that —- that could
be on the compuler could be from another device. So when you
move a file in —- you know, the file system is NTIFS, and in
NTFS, when you move a file over, it will keep the original date
that was from whatever they used to create that. So there was
Aumerous files. So it would be hard to say exactly, like, Jjust
one specific date.

THE COURT: Okay. What was the download date of the
pictures to the computer?

THEE WITNESS: On the exhibits, I would have to look
at the exhibits and look at the file path and find -- tell you
exactly what the date was.

THE COURT: Okay.

MS. LAVELL: May I --

THE CQURT: If we provided you with the exhibits —-

THE WITNESS: Yeah —-

THE COURT: -- would that assist you in answering
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that guestion?

THE WITNESS: Actually the exhibits don't have the
file path.

MS. BEVERLY: ‘Yes. 1+ 'd have to be, like, the file
number. I Jjust printed them.

THE COURT: Oh, okay.

M8, BEVERLY: S0 --

‘THE COURT: So you didn't see —- in other words, you
didn't see any exhibits today as you've been testifying --

THE WITNESS: No.

THE COURT: -- that would aid you in answering that
question?

THE WITNESS: No.

THE COURT: All right. T don't know what else they

prought to court, but that's all we have right now.

All right. Were -- I think we kind cof touched on
this already. Were tﬁere other users' profiles on the laptop?

THE WITNESS: Yeah. Well, most of them are public.
It was all public, and it was opel.

THE COURT: 1Is the laptcp password protected?

THE WITNESS: No.

THE COURT: The memory card, you stated that the
photo was deleted; is that correct?

THE WITNESS: Correct.

THE COURT: Okay. And how do you wipe off
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information from a cell phone?

THE WITWNESS: From a -- from a cell phone. Let's
just say 1t's an iPhone. You can actually go to your settings,
and there -- it says, Wipe iPhone. If you hit wipe iPhene -— 1
mean, it has to be on to Go it in the first place, and if you
get to there, and you hit wipe iPhone, it will wipe the whole
thing.

Tf it's just & generic or regular phone, scme —— YOu
know, like Samsung, might say -~ it will say, Erase —-— krase
phone. 50 if you hit that, it's gone.

THE COURT: A1l right. Thank you.

Mr. Jackson, did yéu have any follow-up --

MR. JACKSON: Yeah, just a ccuple —-

THE COURTE -— based on that last series of
questions?

| MR. JACKSCN: —- follow-up questions.
FOLLOW-UP EXAMINATION
BY MR. JACKSON:
Q You said the laptop was not @astord protected. You
could determine that by your analysis?
.A 1f I go into registry_files, yes.
Q Okay. And you did make that analysis through the
registry files; is that corréct?
F:\ I got -- yeah, I'd have tb look at my report tc make

sure.
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Q Now, when you looked at the pictures, these very

graphic pictures, 3 through 11, Exhibits 3 through 11, you made

an effort to try to determine the date that those would've been

downloaded to the computer; is that correct?

A Any bookmark will show the created, last written and

last access date.

Q You weren't -- you don't remember or you don't know
when they were —-- or you weren't able to determine when they
were downloaded to the computer?

A No, I can determine. I just don't have that
informaticn in front of me.

0 Okay. Now, when --

MR. JACKSON: Court's indulgence for a minute.
THE COURT: That's fine.
BY MR. JACKSON:

Q T think I have one last guestion. Is there any way
you can tell by looking at the videos what camera or what
dlgltal device or what —- where the images you got off of the
computer came from? Can you tell looklng at them where they
were downlecaded from?

A With the videos, I can tell what camera was used to
record those videos, and the images, I would have to lqok at
the metadata to see where they came from, like what website.

¢ . Well, did you determine whaf camera the videco data

came from?
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A 1'd have to go back and look at my report to see

exactly what -- what camera or what video recorder was used.
Q Can you dco that for me?
A Sure.

MS. LAVELL: Mr. Jackson, if'you want to approach the
witness with the documents he brought with him. |

THE COURT: All right. Mr. Jackson is going to hand
you your report, and then just look at it quietly to yourself
to find whether or not it refreshes your -— your memory.

THE WITNESS: Are you talking about the path wheré
they came from? 7 |

BY MR. JACKSON:

Q I'm talking about if you can determine which actual
camera originally -— like video camera or whatever took the

pictures that were then downloaded to the computer that -—-

A Ch, sc you want to know exact -- like, what video
camera —-—

] Right.

A —-— was used for this image —-

Q Yeah.

A -— or for that?

Q Can you determine.that?

A Not with what I've done right here, no.

Q Okay. So you can't determine that?

A only if I look at the video. Because you can —- in
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the video, you can see the camera being placed.
0 Well, would that be something that yocu would've done
in your analysis? Would that have been important?
THE COURT: Mr. Jackson, your notes are visible.
TUE WITNESS: Yes, and there was -- there was
numerous —-
MR. JACKSON: If you can read my writing, Your Hcnor
I'd be —
BY MR. JACKSON:
Q Would that have Dbeen something that you would've —--
that you would've wanted to de?
A There are -- there is -- there was é couple of

cameras and other devices that were connected to that ccmputer

heiore.
Q Well, did any of them match up to Mr. Shue's camera?
A The PICT, which is a —-— on the path, PICT is a —-— for
Sony. So that —-- that path name with PICT, dot, AVI -- PICT,

then a number, then, dot, AVI, that comes back to one of those

video cameras.

Q Well, did you check it out to see if it was the one

Jthat did that video?

A On the video, yes.
P Q Did it?

A on the video you can see the video being placed.
" Q Do you have that camera in evidence?
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A Yes.

Q Okay. And did you match it up with the —- did you
anywhere in your report say that's the camera that was used?

A No.

g . Why not?

A Basically, all the digital files that T have have

already been locaded onto the computer. So I don't need the

camera.
0 vou don't think that's a critical piece of evidence?
A It depends on what you're trying to prove.
Q Well, if someone else took the pictures, it might

prove that somecone else did the crime, wouldn't 1it?

A If I séw someone else on those pictures, yes.

0 I1f the charge is taking photographs that are
illegal -- well, I'll withdraw the question, but you don't
have -- ycu don't have that in your report; is that correct?

A Not in this report, no.

Q All right. Do you have it in any report?

A I can go back to my files and pull it.

0 vou don't have it with you today; is that right?

A No, I don't.

Today 1is the day you were subpoenaed to be in court?

H- S ]

Correct.
MR. JACKSCN: Thank vyou. Nc questions.

THE COURT: Ms. Lavell, any follow-up?
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MS. LAVELL: Yes; just @ little Dbit.
FOLLOW-UP EXAMINATION
BY MS. LAVELL:

Q So you indicated that in addition to the defendant's
prefile on the computer there was at least one other and then.
public profiles?

A Yes.

0 What are public profiles?

B public profiles are just anybody that logs onto the
computer can use that computer. So the way the registry works
is it gives you, like, a -- what's called a SID number, and
it'11 just say, like, You were assigned like 1006. This user
wés assigned 1015. So +there is no specific person, like, you
know, Vince signed on, or, you know, I didn’'t have my specific
user, like on your computer, you can have —-- you are the
administrator, user 1, user 2, user 3, user 4.

0 oo there's -- and I apologize. Because [ am
completely computer illiterate, but you can have -- so it's not
password protected. 50 if the defendant is going to go onto

nis own computer, he just has to start tyeing?

an ~ Correct.

Q So the computer is not going to know it's the
defendant?

A No.

¢ and if somebody e€lse is Lyping, they're not going to
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know it's them?

MR. JACKSON: 1I'm going to object to the leading
questions. We're -— you know, she might as well be ——

THE COURT: .Yes.

MR. JACKSON: -- testifying on the witness stand.

THE COURT: It is a little leading. T mean, say,
would the computer know who was typing, as opposed to -—

MS. LAVELL: Well, I thought I did, but I1'll say it
that way.

THE COURT: Well, you said —- it's leading.

MS. LAVELL: Ckay.

BY MS. LAVELL:

0 Would the computer know who is Lyping?
A No. -
o} Now, I want to just kind of be clear what we're

talking about, the camera. I had previously shown you a camera

in one of the exhibits. Do you remember that?

A Yes.

Q Do you remember what kind of camera that was?

A It looks like a Sony.

0 Was that the one you talked apbout that was booked

into evidence?

A Yes.
0 You indicated that you -- from the -- from the
computer language —-— I'm going to Jjust talk completely
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illiterate when it comes to this —- you can tell it's a Sony
tHat took at least some of the video files?

A A Yes.

Q Or all of them?

iy All the ones that I hookmarked.

0 Okay. So all of the ones that we showed —- we showed

you on the court's -- State's Exhibit 1 now, that SUB device?

A Yes. USB. |

Q  USB. Thank you. I xnow. So sad. So you indicated
when counsel asked you that you were able to tell it was a 3Sony
pased cn what you observed. Can yocu explain what you mean by

that.

B Just if it's a Canon, you'll sece -- like, on --

Q I'm sorry. 1 meant you said you cbserved the
placement of it or something. What were you referring to?

A Oh, okay. When I was reviewing the video files, I

saw Mr. Shue taking that camera and placing it in the bathroom

for videotaping.

Q Okay. Thank you. &And just one more. Were there any
photographs found that -- I just learned the word selfies,
where somecne is taking pictures of themselves -- themself

naked or unclothed --
A Yes.
C Did you see anything of that?

A Yes.
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Q Okay. What was -- who was the subject matter of

that?
E Mr. Shue took a selfie, naked.
Q Ckay. So no females?

L Not that I saw.
| MS. LAVELL: OQkay. All right. Pass the witness.
THE COURT: Anything else, Mr. Jackson?
FURTHER FOLLOW-UP EXAMINATION
BY‘MR. JACKSON:

o Now, are you basing your opinicn on the camera that
was used bhased cn your forensic analysis of the actual films
or -—- or -- or the computers that you saw or on some other
analysis that vou received from your police reports or what?

A I don't understand what you're --

Q A}l right. Did you get this information off of a
computer by looking at the computers, or did you get it off of
leoking at photographs, or how do you determine what camera Qas
used just by visual inspection?

A No. Well, one, I can see Mr. Shue placing the video

camera in an area toc videotape.

Q All right. So you're looking at -- you're lcoking
at -- by what you see, looking at —-— it looks like that kind of
camera looking at a -- loocking at a -~ what looks like a film,

and yocu can recognize it by looking at this. It looks like

this kind of camera?
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A Correct.
Q ‘You can't tell by the way the film comes out or

anything like that?

y: The other -- the other identifier would be, like I
said, the -- when you look at the string, 1t goes, dot, AVI,
and then it tells you the, like, PICT -- or a number and then

PICT. PICT is —-
Q You didn't put any of this in your report though when
you wrote the report?

'MS. BEVERLY: I'm going to object as misstating his
rgport.

THE COURT: Okay. Well, the —- that's overruled. If
the detective disagrees with the question, he can testify to
that.

THE WITNESS: I don't put something as general as
that because it's a general -- PICT or DSEI, DCIM, it all -- it
just depends on what camera you're using.

BY MR. JACKSON:

Q Many cameras look the same; is that correct?
A Sure. Yes.
0 In fact, they may make thousands of similar-looking

cameras. You can buy them at Walmart or buy them at camera
stores that loock almost exactly alike; is that correct?
A Correct.

MR. JACKSON: ©No further questions.
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MS. LAVELL: I just have cne follow—up.
THE COURT: All right. |
FURTHER FOLLOW-UF EXAMINATION
BY MS. LAVELL:
Q We've talked about your report. " You generated a
report as a result of your examination of the computer?
A Correct.
Q And we were just talking about how you can identify

this particular camera Or the video camera that took the images

as a Sony?

A Correct.
O Was it a Sony? Is that what you said?
A Correct.

MS. LAVELL: And I'm going to request to publish this
just for demonstrative purposes. I'm not going to ask that it
be admitted.

THE COURT: Okay. Well, before you do that, show
Mr. Jackson what it is you want to —-

MS. LAVELL: May I approach, Your Honor, real guick?

THE COURT: You may.
3Y MS. LAVELL:

Q All right. I'm just going to show you and just have
you confirm that this is in fact the report that you generated.
A Yes.

0 Okay. And T'm just going to show you a path and just
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specificélly ask -- sorry —— I can't even tell what you're
going to see. Hold on. Okay. Can you see that?

A Yes.

Q All right. And what does that say?

A PICT, 0002, dot, AVI.

Q And from that figure, can you tell what sort of
camera was used?

A Typically, a standard Scony, PICT.

0 Okay. And that’'s what you were referring to when you
indicated that it wasn't just that you visually observed the
defendant placing a Sony camera in the hathroom, but, also,
when you downleocaded the video footage, you were able to
ascertain it was taken by a Sony as well?

A Correct.

MS. LAVELL: I have nothing further.
THE COURT: Anything else, Mr. Jackson, based on just
that last --
MR. JACKSON: Yes.
FURTHER FOLLOW-UP EXAMINATION
BY MR. JACKSON:

Q Did you type this up, or is this report generated off
of some computer software?

A That's generated from the FTK software.

Q and how is it generated off the FTK scftware? Do you

have to type it in, or deces it just —-
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Y No. So if there are —- 1f I have an image that I'm
interested in, I bookmark it. So what that means is I put a
checkmark to bookmark 1t, and then I just -- once I bockmark
it, and then at the end, when all my reporﬁinq is done, you hit
create report, and it gives me the file path that that -- that
that image was in and everything else. S50 you don't have to —-
you can't type anything in to change any of the paths or
anything.

Q All right. So this is -- you program this before

hand, and who does this? Who creates this program for you?

A The program Was created by Access Data.

@ vou didn't create the program?

A No.

Q You didn't develop the software?

A No.-

o So you don't even know how the software works; 1s

that right?

Fis Oh, I know how it works.

Q Did you —- did you design the computer software?

A No.

Q Are you familiar with computer programming?

A Yes.

Q What are the steps involved in creating this
software?

A The —-
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MS. LAVELL: And 1'm going to object at this point,
Your Hconor.

THE COURT: Yes, that's sustained.

MS. LAVELL: He didn't create it. He indicated he
didn't create it.

MR. JACKSON: We don't know that it's an accurate
software. 1 want to find out if he knows.

THE COURT: Do you know the answer Lo that quéstion?

THE WITNESS: It's a hundred percent accurate.

THE COURT: Well, that —-- that wasn't the last
guestion.

THE WITNESS: ©Oh.

MR. JACKSON: The question is: How -- what are the
steps in creating it. I was just asking him a few questions.

We'll find out his knowledge.

THE CQURT: Do you know?

THE WITNESS: First, you basically have to create a
script that's going to run that.
BY MR. JACKSON:

Q What does that mean?

A A script is basically like if X is less than 32, go
to step 54. 5o it‘s just basic programming. 350 this one is
pretty much a JavaScript, just like EnCase uses JavaScript but
their own.

Q What's the data that's inputted?
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A The data input is just the results of that. So the
inle is the actual file from his computer. So all the.program

does is takes the information that I bockmarked, that was shown
to me, and then it creates a report. S0 it doesn't change
anything. It just rakes that and makes it to where the user
can look at what you actually bookmarked and where it came from
and the dates and timeé and everything else.

Q Bave you heard the phrase G, I, G, Q7

A G, I, G, 07

Q Yes. Do you know what that means?

.A No.

Q Garbage in, garbage out.

MS. BEVERLY: I'm going to object.
THE COURT: Who is testifying here?
MS. BEVERLY: I am going to object —-
BY MR. JACKSON:
Q Do you know what garbage in, garbage out means?
MS. BEVERLY: I am going to object at this point.
THE COURT: Mr. Jackson, that's sustained.
BY MR. JACKSON:
| e Do you know what garbage in, garbage out means?
MS. BEVERLY: I'm going to object.
THE COURT: Mr. Jackson, that's sustained unless you
want to rephrase the question.

MR. JBCKSON: All right.
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THE COURT: You can ask that in a different -- in a
different format.
BY MR, JACKSON:

Q 1f you dicn't program the data yourself, how do you
xnow it's accurate?

A It's a multimillion-dollar company that all -- it 1is
one of the leading companies that --— forensically, and it's
forensically proven,.and you can have any of their lawyers Come
and testify to their accuracy, about MD5 hashes and everything
else.

Q Well, would you want -—— 1 won't ask that guestion.
The amount cf money that's paid for something doesn't
necessarily mean it's accurate, does 1it?

MS. BEVERLY: I'm going to object at this point, Your
Honor. He's testifying.

THE COQURT: 1 think that's argumentative.

MR. JACKSON: 211 right.
BY MR. JACKSON:

Q There are multiﬁillion—dollar airplanes that crash,
aren't there?

A Absolutely.

Q Okay. So the amount of money that you spend for
something deesn't necessarily mean ilt's accurate, is it?

A The person that puilt it didn't make it crash.

MS. LAVELL: Your Honor, at this point it's
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llargumentative. It's -~ he's already asked and answered.

THE CQURT: Move con, Mr. Jackson.

MR. JACKSCON: I have no further questions.

L THE COURT: Anything else, Ms. Lavell?
i

MS. LAVELL: Nothing further.

THE COURT: Any additional juror qﬁestions for this
witness?

{No response.)

THE COURT: All right. Detective, thank you for your
testimeny. Please don't discuss your testimony with anyéne
else who may be called as a witness in this ﬁatter.

THE WITNESS: Okay.

THE COURT: Thank you and vyou are excused.

THE WITNESS: Thank you.

THE COURT: Ladies and gentlemen, before we move into
the next witness we're going to take a quick recess until 3:20.

During this brief recess you're reminded you're not
to discuss the case or anything relating to the case with each
other cr with anyone else. You're not te read, watch or listen
to any reports of or commentaries on the case, any person or
subject matter relating to the case, and please don't form or
express an opinion on the trial.

Notepads in your chairs, and follow —-- oh, the
bailiff disappeared -~ but you can find yvour way to the double

doors on your own.
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There he is.

(Jury recessed 3:09 p.m;)

THE COURT: All right. Before we take our break, I
just want to place on the record that at the point where the
detective was reluctant to testify regarding the identity of
the child in the fellatio picture -- I forget what exhibit
number that is -- we approached the bench, and the State didn't
want to have him reveal that.

T told Mr. Jackson he could ask, you know, whether
the child was identified and whether as a result of the
identification he was found to have no relationship to the
defendant, which I thought was Lhe point of the questioning.
Mr . Jackson chose not to ask that question but wanted a copy of
the police report in the other matter, the investigation
relating to the child in that picture. T said that the
detective would be ordered to provide the report for an
in-camera inspection, and the Court is going to look at it, and
then I'1l either make it a court's exhibit —— well, either way
T'11 make it a court's exhibit, and may or may not be turned
over t¢ the defense.

And the State waé directed t¢ tell the detective tThat
he needed to provide‘that so that I could reviéw that, and
Mr. Jackson could of éourse recall —-- or the witness could be
recalled if Mr. Jackson wants to guestion him further about

that report. So that's where we are right now.
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MS. LAVELL: If I can just add to that record, Your
Honor, please, the State.has only found out that this youngster
had been identified con Friday, and pecause of the number of
photos he —- of him in the world -- and I don't believe that
the perpetrator has been identified yet —-— we cpted not TO
utilize the fact that he'd been identified and in fact his age
had been determined.

THE COURT: Is this one of —- when you say the number
of photos, is this one of these children that has pictures
circulating all over the world?

MS. LAVELL: That's my understandiﬁg. There's
apparently a large number of photos of this young --— young

person, and —-

THE COURT: Well, we have —- the detective has walked
back in the room. SO if there's anything we want to know on

the receord, we can ask him.

The young -— the young juvenile in the photo of
Lthe -- I'm going to call it the fellatio photo -- is he
identified as someone who has been in photo —-— & photo, either

one or more photos that's been circulated among the child-porn

circles, like some of these photos are?

THE WITNESS: Exhibit 3, that person, nNo, but 211 the

other exhibits, yes.

MS. BEVERLY: Because the —- the boy who was

receiving --
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THE WITNESS: There were two different --

MS. BEVERLY: -- fellatio is different than the
little boy in the other photos.

THE COURT: ©Oh, okay. 1 thought we were talking
about the fellatio photo.

MS. BEVERLY: No.

'THE COURT: So that boy has not been identified?

THE WITNESS: No.

TEE COURT: Ckay. 1It's the other boy --

THE WITNESS: Yes.

THE COURT: —- that's been identified?

THE WITNESS: In the shower, correct.

THE COURT: Okay. I wasn'tlclear on that, and that
boy -— those photos, are +hose the types of photos that have
peen around for a long time? T know sometimes in these cases
we get photos from, like, the '70s7

THE WITNESS: No.

THE COURT: ©Or --

THE WITNESS: Can I say his age?

THE COURT: Well, for this part of the record, sure.

THE WITNESS: Ckay. Basically, he was -- Just turned

12 years old when those were taken. So, no, they haven't been
for a long time. It is an ongoing investigation. The person
that is responsible for taking all those photos and sexually

abusing him is a fugitive, a federal fugitive right now. I
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mean, I1'l1l teil you his name --
MS. LAVELL: ©No, T wouldn't tell his name.
THE WITNESS: -- is William --

MS. BEVERLY: No. No. No.

THE WITNESS: -~ (Unintelligible.)
THE COURT: Well, here's what I've ordered -- and I
don't know if Ms. Beverly conveyed that to vou -- for you to

provide the Court with those reports, and then I'll look at
them and decide whether or not it's discoverable to
Mr. Jackson, and then cbviously if it is discoverable,

Mr. Jackson knows and the Court will order that he not

‘disseminate that information to anyone because it could

jeopardize an ongoing investigation. Tt may be that that
information is not really germane —-- who the perpetrator is -
to this case.

So did anyone -- I mean, the question T would have is
did anyone do any investigation to see if the perpetrator in
those -- you know, if taking the photos of that boy is an any
way, like,lyou know, known to this defendant?

THE WITNESS: WNo.

THE COUR?: You know, like they work together, same
neighborhood. Was any investigation done —-

THE WITNESS: No, it was —-

THE COURT: -- or we just dor't know of anything?

THE WITNESS: It was after. That investigation was
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well after this one.

THE COURT: Right.

THE WITNESS: And I didn't see anything that -- that
would tie —-- I would've remembered some, Yyou know —-—

MR. JACKSON: All right. But that's the main
question I wanted to ask him. I may want to recall him for
+hat because that's -- 1 wanted to see the police report before
1 asked that gquestion because 1 didn't want to ask it biind.

So that's the -- that's the only thing.

THE COURT: That's the information that you want tO
know?

MR. JACKSON: Yes, that's the only thing I wanted to
put before the jury, that he wasn't directly cennected to that
by, you know, being involved in it because the jury might be
left with 2 misimpression.
| THE COURT: Well, T —- I said you could answer —-— ask
it before, but I -- let's just do this then. If that's all you
want to know —-

MR. JACKSON: That's all I want to know.

THE COURT: --— wWe Can just have the detective come
pack, and we'll say, Qh, there was another ques£ion, Detective,
and then Mr. Jackson can ask that —-

MR. JACKSON: And +hen he can go, and I don't even

need to see the report.

THE COURT: ~—- and you can follow up or whatever .
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MS. LAVELL: My follow-up will Dbe, How old is the kid
in the picture. So [ den't know if Mr. Jackson --—

MR. JACKSON: And that's fine. I think the kid's

FJprobably 12 years old. I don't dispute that it looks like

that. I ain't gonna worry abocut that.

MS. LAVELL: Okay.

MR. JACKSON: That's not the issue. I just want to
establish that Mr. Shue wasn't directly connected with that kid
because it was obvious to me that it was totally separate from
the other 40 pictures you golL Or the videos.

MS. BEVERLY: All right. That's fine.

THE COURT: Okay. 5o —-

MR. JACKSON: All right. But ] didn't want to ask
the question without seeing the police report.

THE CQURT: S0 are you comfortable asking the
question now that we've had this discussion?

MR. JACKSON: Yes. Yes. 1 would expect the officer
being candid and straightforward. 1 just haven't got the
police report, and 1 didn't want to be blindsided.

THE COURT: All right. So, Detective, hang around,
and after we take our preak you'll just come right baék in, and
we'll reopen the guestions.

THE WITNESS: Okay.

MS. LAVELL: So we're not going to ask you his name

or whoever's involved.
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(Proceedings recessed 3:16 p.m. O 3:21 p.m.)
(Outside the presence of the jury.)

MS. BEVERLY: I know that Mr. Jackson wanted to ask
about was there any connection between the person —- that this
detective does know who tock photos of the little boy. Is he
allowed to say that he kncows who took the photos and that that
person is the subject of a federal investigatibn?

MR. JACKSON: 1I'm not going to ask about a federal
investigation. I'm just going Lo say, In your investigation,
have you determined that Mr. Shue doesn't have any connection
with those photos?

THE COURT: Okay.. Well, they can say, Have you
identified who it is?

I mean, are you objecting that if they want to ask,
Is this the subject of a federal investigaticn, are you
cbjecting to that guestion?

ME. JACKSON: Do you want.me to ask that, or does she
want to?

THF COURT: No. No. I'm saying,‘if they ask it, are
you going to object to it?

MR. JACKSON: Well, then I want the whole police
reports and whatever. I mean, it's -- you know --

MS. BEVERLY: Okay. We won't —- excuse me.

MR. JACKSON: If Mr. Shue isn't involved in the

federal investigation, isn't charged in federal indictment --
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THE COURT: A1l right. wWell, it could be construed
as maybe prejudicial if the federal government --

MR. JACKSON: Well, I -— I think it's a irrelevant.

THE COQURT: That's fine. They're not going to ask
it.

You can say that he's the subject o an
investigation —-- |

MS. BEVERLY: Right.

THE COURT: -- and he hasn't been identified -- or he
has been identified, and whether it's federal, state, local, it
doesn't matter.

MS. BEVERLY: Sure. And I guess we also —- you Xnow,
he's asking, Is Mr. Shue connected, and I'm sure the Jjury is
going teo be wondering, well, where did he get the photos from,
and the photos came from a website. So is he allowed to say
that the photos came from a —-— I guess for lack of a better
word —— kiddie-porn website?

THE COURT: 1If that was disclosed as part of his
investigation in this case, then, yes. I1f it wasn't, then I
think we're opening up a whole new Pandora's box, and I don't
want to keep —- do you see what 1'm saying?

MS. BEVERLY: I do. I do.

THE COURT: 1 mean, if when he did his investigation
of this léptop he traced it to a kiddie porn website and that

was in his report, then it's fair game. If it wasn't, then I
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think that's going too far, and I don't want to now have to
nopen discovery again. So let’s just -- I don't think it's that
necessary.

MR. JACKSON: You know what, before I ask any
questions, I want to see the report because, YoOu know, the
prosecution wants to complicate it —-

MS. BEVERLY: I'm not going to. I saigd, no, I'm not
going to.

THE COURT: Mr. Jackson, you're going to ask your
question. All they're going to ask is, Have you identified the
person, and is he the subject of an unrelated investigation?
Yes. Not federal, not state, nothing, just an investigation,
that's ——

MR. JACKSON: Okay.

THE COURT: You know, I don't see that that 1s
prejudicial toward your client in any way.

MR. JACKSON: All right. That's fine.

MS. LAVELL: Okay. And we just want to make sure —-—

THE COURT: That's fine with Mr. Jackson. Thét's
what we're going to do.

MS. LAVELL: Thank you. And we just want to make
sure that the officer isn't asked if he somehow was involved
because he can't answer that. He doesn't know whether he is or
isn't.

THE COURT: Well, that's the point of it, 1s that at
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this point he nasn't connected this defendant to that
investigation.

MS. LAVELL: But ﬁe can't say whether or not he knows
this person Or doesn}t know this person.

HE COURT: Of course not.

Ms. LAVELL: He cal just simply testify that - that
someone other than the defendant took those photos.

THE COQURT: angd he's found no connection between the

two of them at this point..

MS. LAVELL: Right.

THE COURT: That's what -- all right.

Bring them in.

{(Jury entering 3:25 p.m.)

THE COURT: All right. Court is now back in session.

and when we took the break, it was realized that
there were some additional guestions for the detective.

50, Detective, obviously you're still under oath.

aAnd, Mr. Jackson, go ahead.

MR. JACKSON: Thank you.

FURTHER RECROSS—EXAMINATION
BY MR, JACKSON:
Q officer Ramirez, thank you, and 1 appreciate you

coming back. We have —— an ilssue arose concerning the photo
involving the yéung boy and the male having oral sex, and I

pelieve it's been determined that the young male has been the
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subject of a -- another unrelated investigation; is that

correct?

A Not Exhibit 3.

Q Is that Exhibit 37? What exhibit is that that he's
in?

A That's the one where the male is receiving oral
cepulation.

MR. JACKSON: Can we have a copy of those exhibits?
THE COURT: Counsel, approach. All we need is
Ms. Lavell, Mr. Jackson.
{Conference at the bench not recorded.)
BY MR. JACKSON:

Q It isn't the exhibit inveolving the cral copulatiﬁn.
It's the other picture of the young boy that you believe was
involved in the ongoing investigation. I think maybe -- the --
State has advised me it's Exhibit No. 4.

A Correct.

-0 All right. My mistake. T got my signals confused,
and I apologize for that. There's been some confusion around
this. And that investigation, you've advised me and the Court
that the defendant Joshua Shue is not involved in that
investigation; is that correct? |

A That's correct.

Q And he, to your knowledge, based on the investigation

so far, did not take that picture in Exhibit 4; is that
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1 correct?
2 A That's correct.
3 0 You have no information to believe that he is part of

4 that ongoing investigation at this time?

5 A That's correct.

£ MR. JACKSON: I have no further .questions.
_ 1 THE COURT: Ms. Lavell.

g | MS. LAVELL: Thank you.

9 FURTHER FOLLOW—UP EXAMINATION

10 BY MS. LAVELL:

! 11 0 Sc just so we all know who we're talking about L['m

12 publishing with the Court's permission State's Exhibit 4. Is

13 this the young man that you have recently identified?

14 A Yeg.

15 0 and is he depicted in more than one State's exhibit?
16 A Yes.

17 Q There is an ongoing investigation invclving an

18 individual thought to have taken these photos, not the

19 defendant; is that correct?

20 |l A Yes.

21 0 How old was the child in this particular picture?
R 22 A 12. |
i 23 “ Q and do you know when this picture was taken?
? 24 A Yes.

25 “ 0 So how old would he be now?
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l A should be 14.

MS. LAVELL: Nothing further.

THE COURT: Any follow-up to that?

MR. JACKSON: No further questions.

THE COURT: Any additional juror guestions?

All right. Detective, 1 see no further questions.

THE WITNESS: Thank you.

THE CCURT: Now you are excused.

And the State will pléase call its next witness.

MS. LAVELL: Thank you, Your Honor . The State calls
Detective Jaeger.

(State's.witness, Ryan Jaeger, SWorn. )

THE COURT: Thank you. Please be seated and please
<tate and spell your name.

THE WITNESS: -My first name is Ryan, R-y-a-D. Last
name is Jaeger, J-a-e-g-e-r.

THE COURT: All right. Thank you.

Ms. Lavell.

MS. LAVELL: Court's indulgence for one quick second.

FURTHER REDIRECT EXAMINATION

ﬂ BY MS. LAVELL:

|

Q Sir, how are you employed?

A Currently 1 am a detective with the Las Vegas

‘Metropolitan police Department.
T Q How 1long have you been with Metro?
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A A little over 1lb years.

Q and in 2010, were you assignéd to the sex-based crime
unit with Metro?

A I was.

Q in August of 2012, specifically August 23, 2012z, did
you become involved in an investigation invelving an individual

by the name of Joshua Shue?

: I did.

Q Do you see him present 1in the courtroom?

A .I do.

0 Would you point in his direction and describe

something that he's wearing.
A He's right there wearing a dark blue suit and tie.
MS. LAVELL: Yoﬁr Honor, may the record reflect that
the witness has identified the defendant?”
THE COURT: It will.

BY MS. LAVELL:

Q Did you make contact with & young lady by the name of

Hazel in regards to this investigation?

. 1 did.

Q Do you recall Hazel's age at the time?

A at the time, she was 17.

Q Did you meet with her to discuss some‘cohcern she had

in regards to the defendant?

A I did.
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Q What-did she specifically tell you her relaticnship

was with the defendant?

il It was her mother's boyfriend.

Q And her mother's name?

i Anita.

Q And what was her reason for contacting law

enforcement?
A She stated that Mr. Shue took some pictures of her up

under her dress.

Q D.d he indicate —-- did she indicate that he had done

anything else to her?

A He had kissed her.
Q NDid she indicate that he had said anything -to her?
L They had a conversation, and during the conversation

he had told her that he was only with her mother because of
her.

Q Did she indicate that all of that happened on the
22nd of August, or did one or more things happen on the —-

it That all happened on that night.

o] Okay. As a result of speaking with Hazel, did you

have cause to meet with the defendant?

A I did.

Q Where did you meet with him?

A I met with him at the LVMPD headgquarters building.

Q When you met with him, did he voluntarily come down,
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or did you pick him up?

A He drove, and we --

e So did you contact him by the phone -- on the phone,
cr did you meet with him and then ask him to respond?

A I met with him in person, and we kind of scheduled an

appointment for him to come to the headguarters building.

0 And he kept that appointment?

A He did.

o) Okay. Did you conduct a taped interview?

A I did.

Q Did you advise him of his Miranda rights?

A I did.

Q Did he agree to speak with you?

A He did. |

Q Did you discuss with him some of the concerns or some

of the behaviors that Hazel had reported to you?

A Yes, i did.

Q Did you meet with himron the same day, August 23rd,
that Hazel had contacted police?

A Yes, I did.

Q What did the defendant say in regards to kissing

A He admitted that it happened.

Q Did he tell you where on her perscn he kissed her?

A He kissed her cn the face.
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O On the cheek?

A That's correct.

Q Did he deny kissing her romantically?

A That's correct.

Q Did he -- did you ask him about taking a picture of

} Hazel under her skirt?

A I did.
Q and what did he say about that?
A He admitted to doing it.

o] and did he say why he did 1t?
ge said he was kind of playing around, tock the

picture and showed her the picture.

Q Did he say what he did with the picture after he took
it?

A He said she was kind of embarrassed by the picture.
So he deleted the picture.

Q Did Hazel when you spoke to her indicate that she had

given him permission or wanted him to take a picture up her

skirt?
A She did not want him tO take a picture.
Q pid you talk to him about what camera he used to take

the picture up her skirt?
A I did.
Q What did he tell you?

A it was a blue Sony camera, 4 little digital camera.
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Q Did you ask him about the comments that she satd in
regards to him —-- what did you say that she saild?

A About?

Q The mother and her and him.

A That oné of the main reasons he was with her mother

was because of her.

0 Did you ask him about that?
A I did.
0 When you first asked him about that, what did he say

in regards to that?

A He said that he cared for her and her two brothers.
He wanted to make sure that they were raised right.

Q So did he admit to having said, I'm only with your

mother because of you, explaining that he meant because he

cared about the kids?

A That's correct.
Q Later in the discussion, did he change his tune in
regards to what he meant when he said that to Hazel?
A (Nodded head.)
Q And what did he tell you?
A That there was some romantic thoughts there towards
Hazel.
MS. LAVELLE Court's indulgence.
Judge, may we approach?

TEE COURT: Sure.

KARR Reporting, Inc.
131

954



16

11

12

13

14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
27
23
24

25

(Conference at the bench not recorded.)
THE COURT: Go on, Ms._Lavell.
MS. LAVELL: Thank you, YOur Honor .
BY MS. LAVELL:
¢ So when speaking with the defendant in regards to his
comment that he was only with the mother because of the kids,
he initially indicated to you that he meant because he really
cares about the kids. o he's staying with the mother?
B That's correct.
0] But then later he indicated that there was &
different reason?

, That's correct.

o=

o] nd what did he say’?

A That he was noticing that she was a very attractive
girl.

Q0 Okay. So did you ask her a question in regards TO

whether or not he viewed her rcomantically?

A Her or —-—

Q Viewed Hazel romantically?

A Did I ask him?

o) pid you ask him whether or nolt —-—

A Yes.

Q and did he indicate he did?

A He did.

Q and did he specifically say, 1've told her that from
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time to time because she could be really sweet, and she's an
attractive young lady?
MR. JACKSON: Obijection. You know, let her ask the
question, what he said rather than Jjust read his statement --
THE COURT: Okay. Your cbjection is to leading.
The cbjection as to leading is sustained.
BRY MS. LAVELL:

Q Do you recall what the defendant said specifically in

regards to your asking him about whether or not he has romantic

feelings towards Hazel and that he had told her that before?

A That's correct. He had told her that.

Q Do you recall verbatim what he éaid in regard to
that?

A Not verbatim. I'd have to refer to the transcripts.

] It would refresh your recollection if you referred to

the transcript?

A That's correct.

Q Page 15 of the defendant's statement.

2 I'm on page 15 of this transcript.

Q Well, if you're able to just read it to yourself and

i
remember it, that would be great. If you can't do that, let me

know.
A Okay.
Q Okay. What did he say?

A He told her that from time to time he's explained to
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her that she is very attractive, but he would never act on any

of those feellngs.

Q

A

Q

Because she is a young lady?
That's correct.

Did you ask him whether or not he'd ever taken any

other photos of Hazel?

A

Q

A

I did.
And what did he say?

He admitted to taking pictures of them out and about,

doing family stuff.

Q

Did he ever —-— did you ask him whether he had taken

any inappropriate photos of her?

A
Q
. A

Q

I dig.
What did he say?
He said he had not.

Did you ask him specific areas of the house, whether

ar not he had taken any photos of her there?

A

A

Q

T did. I asked him if he’'d taken any pictures of her

in the bathroom.

What did he say?
He said he did not.
Did you talk to him about seizing his computer?

I did.

Okay. Did you ask him if you -- if you were to seize

his computer and do an exam what you might find?
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A I did.
Q and what did he say?
A At that time- he ended the interview and invoked his

right to counsel.

MR. JACKSON: I'm going to object, Your Honor.

That's ——

THE COURT: Yes, that's sustained.

MR. JACKSON: May 1 approach with counsel?

THE CQURT: Sure.

(Conference at the bench not recorded.)

THE COURT: Let's go until 3:35.

And then again, during the break you're reminded
you're not togc discuss the case 0Or anything relating To the
case with each cther or with anyone else. You're not to read,
watch or listen to any reports of, or commentaries on the case,
any person or subject matter relating to the case. Please
don't form or express anb opinion on the trial.

Notepads 1n your chairs and iollow the bailiff
through the double doors.

(Jury recessed 3:43 p.m.)

—HE COURT: Okay. after the last bit of testimeny,
which, you know —- you're not - they're not supposed to —— &
witnesses isn't supppsed to comment if someone invokes their
right to counsel or their right to remain silent, which

happened, but Ms. Lavell up here at the bench -— and I don't
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have the statement in front of me.

Up here at the bench, you indicated that that was
not —--

Maybe we should excuse thé detactive.

M5. LAVELL: Yes.

MR. JACKSON: Yes.

THE COUﬁT: You can wait in the vestibule because we
may be talking about your testimony.

THE WITNESS: Okay.

THE COURT: So technically you're not supposed to be
here to hear us talk abcut what you're going to say.

MR. JACKSON: That was going to be my request.

THE COURT: All right. And Mr. Jackson was about to
request that.

So, Ms. Lavell, according to the transcript, what
did -- what was actually said Dby the defendant?

MS. TLAVELL: Well, the detective had indicated that
he laid his cards on the table and now it was time for the
defendant to come clean, and what the defendant said wés,
Right. i think I need a lawyer, you know. That's not —-

TEE COURT: And then what happened?

MS. LAVFELL: And then the officer said, Okay.

And then he said,-Um, right -- um, right.now. And
that was the officer that said that.

And then the defendant says, 1'm not a bad person,
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pbut I do have some things that aren't -- that aren't good, that
aren't on the up-and-up, if you know what I mean, referring to
his computer.

That's the question I was asking, and in fact, I
crossed out the lawyer part. So he didn't invoke his right,
and T think it needs to be made clear that he did not invoke
his right. Invecking your right is unequivocal. He did not.

And, you know, I -- obviously he ended the interview,
put I don't think that this is overly prejudicial, and
certainly we can clear it up that the officer used the wrong
terminology.

THE COURT: Well, we could clear it up by you saying,
Okay, directing your attention to the transcript, I'd like you
to read that part. You said he asked for counsel. 1Is that,
you know -- is that what happened?

and then, Nc¢, I was mistaken.

And, Did he continue to tell you sometﬁing else?

Yes, he said that there was some bad things, or
whatever else he said.

MS. LAVELL: Becaduse he didn't invoke. He just made
a comment. So I think I'm —— I think we can do it one of two
QaYs, Your Honor. We can —- 1 think for the purposes of -- did
ydu misstate when you indicated that he asked for a lawyer?

THE COURT: Yes. The reason --— 1 mean, part of the

problem is you can't make somebody lock guilty because they
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invoked their right to counsel. That's why it's a problem, 1n
addition to if you continue the questioning, but, you know, yoﬁ
can't make someone look guilty because they ask for a lawyer,
and that's kind of the inference that we're left with, and so
we need to figure out how to clean that up because theat's where
the problem is. Again, 1if somebody invokes thelr right, you
can't use it against them.

MS. LAVELL: Right.

THE COURT; Mr. Jackson.

MR. JACKSON: Well, I think Your Honbr has hit tﬁe
nail on the head. The way to cure it -- clear it up is to
grant a mistrial, which is what I'm asking for because the
Supreme Court case law is clear. This is an experienced
detective. He isn't a rookie. He isn't —— it isn't his first
year, but how long has he been a police officer? 19 years. He
is working on the sexual assault detail. We've got two deputy
district attorneys here. They should know the law.

Tt isn't —- when you say, I think I need a lawyer,
that's encugh. The issue was clear. Now, as scon as they said
it, I objected immediately, and he said it very clearly.

THE COURT: Well, I sustained the objection.

MR. JACKSON: Well, sustaining thé objection isn't
enough. It doesn't cure the fact that he said, Ch, 1 need a
lawyer . They shouldn't have gone into this question¥ He

should’'ve been -- I assume —-— and these are experienced
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prosecutors —- that they prepped their witness before coming
into court. It --

THE COURT: In Ms. Lavell's defense, she was leading
the detective, and you obijected, and I told her don't lead the
detective. So she was, you know, kind of trying to lead him-

MR. JACKSCHN: Yeah, but this particular guestion, the
officer knows better, and the only remedy -- well, we can
strike the rest of the of ficer's testimony. He can say no
further questions, and 1 -- either that or declare a mistrial.
We can start again. I'm ready next week, and we can pick a new

jury and start again, but the only way to cure it is to grant a

mistrial.

I can't think of -- you know, instructing the jury,
saying that, Well, he invoked his -- he wanted & lawyer, every
TV show, .they say, Oh —- the cops say, Well, the defendant

lawyered up. He must've been guilty. That's the inference
they always draw.
| THE COURT: Well, what the State suggested —-

MR. JACKSON: And this is —-

Let me finish. I'm not done talking, Counsel. I'll
be done in about 30 seconds.

This is a particularly pad case. We've had jurors
say, Oh, this is & yucky case, a child pornography case. OCh,
my God, how can wWe sit on this case. 1In this case, Yyou know,

he's a perscn charged with child pornography, facing a life
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sentence, and the prosecution 1is saying; oh, the first thing he
does is lawyer up after he's already made some admissions.

Now —-—

MS. LAVELL: Go ahead, Counsel.

MR. JACKSON: Well, I see another counsel has left.

1 don't know where. Maybe we should wait until she gets back.

MS. LAVELL: She's looking for the file 1n case we
keep going.

THE COURT: Okay. Here's the thing. Like I said,
the problem is, you know, you can't create a negative inference
if someone tries to invoke their right to counsel or their
right to remain silent; Now, we méy be able to clean it up if
we remove that inference.

and, Ms. Lavell, again, the way to do that would be
to say, Okay, you testified to that. 1I'd like you to look at
this transcript and refresh your recollection. Did the
defendantrinvoke his right to counsel? No.

Do it like that so that it's not, Well, he said, I
would maybe like -- because that's an eguivocal invocation.
We're not going to get 1nto an equivecal invocation in front of
the jury here.

and then he'll say, No, I -- no, that he didn't.

and then, you know, Did that -- you know, What did he

tell you, or did he, you xnow, admit to whatever the next thing

was"”
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MS. LAVELL: Right. And I think, you know —-—

THE COURT: And then that's 1it.

MS. LAVELL: And T think that because -- first of
all, he didn't invoke. 50 he did get it wrong.

THE COURT: Yes, but the peoint is that even if
someone's —-

MS. LAVELL: No. I understand.

THE COURT: -- thinking about invoking -- my point is
you can't use a constitutional protection against somebody if
they're thinking of invoking. Do you know what I mean?

MS. LAVELL: No. I'm agreeing —-

THE COURT: To make them look guilty, that defeats
the whole point.

MS. LAVELL: No. I'm completely in agreement with
you. He didn't invoke. So the officer did misstate, and I
don't even think we have to bring up the fact that he sald, you
know, Maybe I need a lawyer, and so when he, you know -- so he
did misspeak because the defendant —— so I'm -—- I mean, I'm
very comfortable --

THE COURT: But if you ask it that way, not, What did
the defendant say about a lawyer, because then you're
highlighting this whole lawyer lssue --

MS. LAVELL: 1I'm not going to make --

THE CQURT: -—-- to -- which, you know, may make him

look guilty. Refresh your recollection. ©Now, that you've
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And what did he say?
MS. LAVELL:

THE COURT:

THE COURT:

makes the statement,

I

lawyer .

M5. LAVELL

looked at it, is it true the defendant didn't invoke his right

to counsel? Yes. And he continued to speak with you? Yes.

Yes.

Blah. And then I think maybe we've

removed that negative inference.

MR. JACKSON: T don't think i£ removes the negative
inference, Your Honor. I'd like to draft an instruction saying
you can draw a negative inference against the police officers
for even raising that because 1 thipk it's totally improper
that when an experienced police officer raises such an
inflammatory thing in front of the jury with their experience.
'1'11 draft an instruction +hat I think might be able to cure

that. Otherwise, I think a mistrial is appropriate.

Well, I den’'t know that we need to have a

mistrial. Like I said, I think we maybe can cure this through

the proper questioning of the officer.

MR. JACKSON: ©Oh, I don't want him questioned at all

i about -- about my client’'s not -- once he makes -— once he

1 think I need a lawyer, that should

preclude any questioning about that, any further guestioning at

“ all about it. I'm not going to ask him about his asking for a

.  He wasn't guestioned further.

MS. BEVERLY: He wasn't questioned further.
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MS. LAVELL: He wasn't questioned further. He made a
statement, and the State's -- and the state is entitled tO make
the jury aware of that statement. He didn't invoke. To =

THE COURT: All right. |

MR. JACKSON: She's wrong on the law on that.

MS. LAVELL: We're talking about LwoO different
things. The case 1aw is very clear that in order to —- to be
required to STOP guestioning it has to be unequivocal. I want
to stop. 1 need -- 1 want a lawyer. That's not what happened

here.

7 completely agree that we need to correct what was
said.

THE COURT: Right. Wwell, we need to get away from
the inference OI that —-— the suggestion that the defendant
thought about a lawyer when the gquestioning got tough because
then that's what makes him maybe look guilty, that, Okay, now I
better get a lawyer, and that‘s exactly what you're not allowed
to do. |

MS. LAVELL: Right.

THE COURT: And SC that's -- we need to get away from
that with the detective. We're going to see how it goes.

You know, your requeét is at this point denied
without prejudice. 1f I think we can clean up the record well
enough, then we'lre going to 9o forward. 1If I don't think the

record 1s cleaned up well enough, then I'11 consider your
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request, but I think we can clean it up with questicning the

detective,

spontanecus utterance, 350 to speak, and they cab ask him, you

know, What else did he say? Blah, plah, blab.

then I'm going to say I think it cleans it up well enough. If

1 don't,

tomorrow with further case law.

up, 1if we can, in a truthful manner, and he did misspeak. 3o
it's not misleading, oOF it's not lying if he says he misspoke,

that that's not what he did.

officer how you're going to answer —— ask the guestions —-—

can finish this up.

record.

and then if I think that cleans it up well enough,

then I'll consider your request for a mistrial again.

MR. JACKSON: 1I'd like to supplement the record

THE COURT: That's fine.
MR. JACKSON: I'll find some case law tonight.

THE COURT: But I'd 1ike to try to clean the record

and then so maybe, Ms. Lavell, you can tell the

and then, you know, he made a —— he made a

MS. LAVELL: Yes, Your HonoIr.

THE COURT: -—— 80O he knows how TO answer them, and we
MS. LAVELL: Thank you, Your Honor.
MS. BEVERLY: Thank you.

THE COURT: And you're hoth welcome to supplement the

MR. JACKSON: Can my client use the restroom now? He
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would like to take a minute or two --
X‘ THE DEFENDANT: I want to talk to him anyway.
THE COURT: He's not allowed in the back.
I THE DEFENDANT: ©Oh, that's fine. I'll wait.
THE COURT: I mean, he can use the one out there.
IIYou both can -- well, you both can walk cut there to make
sure --
I MR. JACKSON: We can go out there.
THE COURT: That's fine.
“ (Proceedings recessed 3:54 p.m. to 3:58 p.m.)
{In the ﬁresence of the jury.)
Lﬂ THE COURT: All right. Court is now back in session:
Ms. Lavell, you may resume your direct examination of
the witness.
M5. LAVELL: Thank-you, Detective —-- fhank you, Your
Henor.
BY MS. LAVELL:

Q Detective, the last question I asked you resulted in
you indicating that the defendant had invoked his right to an
attoiney. Do you remember that?

MR. JACKSON: I'm-going to object again. We're —— we
keep —-- may 1 approach the bench?
THE COURT: VAll right. That's sustained.
(Conference at the bench not recorded.)

MR. JACKSON: ~- Your Honor, and I want a motion for
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a mistrial right now.

TEE COURT: Mr. Jackson -~ all right.

Ms., ——

MR. JACKSON: This is the second time. 1 want it on
the record.

THE COURT; all right. Ms. Lavell --

MS. LAVELL: May I continue, Your Honor?

THE COURT: You may approach.

(Conference at the bench not recorded.)
BY MS. LAVELL:
Q Detective, if I show you the_transcript ——

MR. JACKSON: I thought we --

THE COURT: I meant she —- I want her to move Of,
and ——

MR. JACKSON: And the record reflect my continuing
cbjection TO the prosecutor's —-

THE COURT: The record still reflects, Mr. Jackson —-

MR. JACKSON: -—- violation of my client's —-

THE COURT: Mr. Jackson —-—

MR. JACKSON: —- Fifth Zmendment rights --

THE CCURT: --— Your record --
MR. JACKSON: -—-— and I want the record to clearly

vreflect that I think —-
THE COURT: 1 think it does.

MR. JACKSON: -—- that it's prosecutorial misconduct
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of the highest order.

record.

proceed

THE COURT: Mr. Jackson, I think you've made your
T need you to sit down, and Ms. Lavell is going tO

with her gquestioning, and ycu may make contemporaneous

objections to each guestion 1f you find them objectionable.

Okay.

Sp, Ms. Lavell, go on.

MS. LAVELL: Thank you.

BY MS. LAVELL:

Q

Is it possible that you were incorrect when you made

that statement?

A

o

That's correct. I misspoke.

And I'm going to bring up the transcript that we're

utilizing, and I want you to review this and tell me, isn't it

correct

that the defendant never invoked and never asked for
attorney —-—
MR. JACKSON: I'm going to cbject to that as a legal
conclusion, and I again move for a mistrial.

BY MS.
Q

that yo

to have

whether

THE COURT: Okay. Counsel, approach.
(Conference at the bench not recorded.)
LAVELL:
All right. So after you indicated to the defendant
u were able to do a computer analysis or you were going
a4 forensic analysis done of his computer to determine

or not there was anything inappropriate on that
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computer, did he say anything in regards to the forensic
analysis?

A He did.

Q What did he say?

A He said that you were going to find —- that I was

going to find stuff.

Q Okay. And did he indicate what sorts of stuff,
whether -- and 1f you don't know, I don't want you T0o guess.
if you -—-

B He just said bad stuff.

Q Okay. Would it refresh your recollection to look at

the transcript?

A Yes, it would.

THE COURT: Yes. Detective, if you don't remember,
juét say you don't remember . Don't guess OI speculate, and
then Ms. Lavell can do whatever she's going to do. That wasn't
a question. It's just going forward.

THE WITNESS: Yes, it's a 6(0-page —-

BY MS. LAVELL:
Q 1 understand. And that's why —-
THE COURT: All right. Ckay.
MS. LAVELL: Page 42, Counsel.
BY MS. LAVELL:
Q Does that refresh your recollection?

A It does.
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Q Can you read what the defendant said in regards to
your telling him that yocu were going to do 2 forensic exam of
his computer.

yit .I-did. 1t said -- he said, 1I'm not a bad person.

MR. JACKSON: Your Honor, I'm going to object again.
The reason I'm going to object 1s because he said this after he
invoked his right to counsel —-

THE COURT: All right --

MR. JACKSON: ~-- on page 42 --

THE.COURT: All right.

MR. JACKSON: -- line —-— I'm going to say this —-

MS. BEVERLY: Can we approach?

MR. JACKSON: -- line —- in the middle of the page —-

THE COURT: Counsel --

MR. JACKSON: -- he said --

THE MARSHAL: Counsel, approach the bench.

THE COURT: Counsel, approach.

MR. JACKSON: -- I think 1 need & lawyer.

THE COURT: That calls for a legal ruling.

MR. JACKSON: Yes, but I'm meking my objection on the
record.

TEE COURT: Okay. And your objection is noted on the
record, and it's overruled.

(Conference at the bench not recorded. )

THE COURT: Your objection is noted. Your
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continuing --

MR. JACKSON: Can I —-—

THE COURT: -— objection to the further guestioning
of --

MR. JACKSON: Can I reflect that it's —-

THE CCURT: -—- this detective —- |

MR. JACKSON: -- on themgnited States COQQEEtutional
grounds. o -

THE COURT: Mr. Johnson —— Mr. Jackson, I'm -- your

confinuing objection to Ms. Lavell's continued questioning of
the detective is noted on the record.
MR. JACKSON: On Fifth Amendment grounds. Thank you.
THE COURT: 2ll right. Thank you.
BY MS. LAVELL:

Q 211 right. 1In addition to saying, I'mrnot a bad
person, what cid he say in regards to what you might find con
his computer?

A I do have some things that aren't -- that aren't
good. They aren't on the up-and-up, if you know what I mean.

Q Now, after speaking to the defendant, did you cause
searéh warrants to be drafted 609 Falm Wash Lané, in Henderson,
the defendant’'s residence?

A I did.

Q Did you also cause a search warrant to be drafted for

3640 Kolendo Court, No. D, in Las Vegas, the victim's

KARR Reporting, Inc.
i50 .

973



10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

23

residence?

A I did.

Q Are both of thdse residences in Clark County, Nevada?

B They are.

Q Did someone other than you serve those search
ﬁarrants?

B That's correct.

Q Now, I think when we were speaking earlier you
indicated that -- that the defendant had taken the photo under
Hazel's dress using a Sony —-— & Sony camera?

yay T believe it was a Canon.

Q Ckay.

A 2 blue in color Canon camera.

Q. Now, did you also taik to the defendant in regard to

whether or not he might have anything on his personal cell

phone?
A T did.
Q Did he have his persocnal cell phone with him when you

met with him?

A Yes, he did.

o} Did he say anything to you in regard to -- to your
inguiring whether he would have -- and what were you -~ what
were you asking specifically what he might have?

A T asked him if I coculd see what pictures he had on

his pheone.

KARR Reporting, Inc.
151 -

974



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

|

|

|

Q And what did he say as a result of that guestion?

A He consented to allow me tO look ét the pictures of
his phone.

0 Did he say anything to you in regards to the phone
prior to giving it to you?

A He did not.

0 In-terhs of whether or not it would contain any
content?

A He said that he's had problems with it, and that it's
been rebooting. He's had to reboot it to fix -- like, it would

freeze every once in a while.

Q and when did he indicate —--— and did he use the word

poot, or did he use some other word?

A I believe he used some other word.

Q Okay. Would it refresh your recollection if you
1ooked at your -- the franscript of your conversation with the
defendant?

A It would.

MS. LAVELL: Court's indulgence.

THE COURT: That's fine.

H BY MS. LAVELL:

Q Well, while we're locking for the page s0 that we can
refresh your recollection to the word that the defendant used,
did you actually take possession of his phone?

A T did.
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0 While you were visiting with him?
I r I did.

Q And did you -- did you personally lock at the phene
to determine whether or not there was anything in the phone?

A I did.

0 Okay. Did you find anything in the phone?

A There was no content in it whatsoever. There wasn't
a call log. There wasn't any photographs. There was nothing
EIin the pheone's memcry.

Q QOkay. And you used the word rebooted, but we're
going to =--

MS. LAVELL: Court's indulgence.

Page 24, Counsel.

MR. JACKSON: Thank you.

THE WITNESS: The exact word —-

MR. JACKSON: Can he —-— can she ask him a question
before she shows him what he's going to testify to.

THE COURT: That's sustained. If you need to refresh
his recollection, then he needs to say he -- he doesn't
remember .

MR. JACKSON: Otherwise, we can just put the —-

MS. LAVELL: Well, he —-

THE COURT: Mr. Jackson, I sustained your objection.

MR. JACKSCN: Thank you.

THE COURT: You don't need to say anything else.
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MS. LAVELL: He actually did say he didn't recall,
and T was looking. It just Look mé a long time toO find it, and
that's why there's é separation.

BY MS. LAVELL:

Q vou indicated that you were —- YOU didn't remember
exactly what he said in regards to his phone. Would it -- and
T asked if it would refresh your recollection if you viewed the
preliminary hearing transcript, and you indicated that it
would —-

MR. JACKSON: There is no preliminary hearing in this
case. I don't pelieve —-

BY MS. LAVELL:

Q0 -— I'm sorry --— the defendant's statement, and you
indicated that it would. So can I get you O look at this and
see if that --

THE COURT: Okay. Yes, 1ook at it, read it to
yourself. Tell us whether or not that refreshes your
recollection as to what was said.

THF, WITNESS: The exact word was resetting instead of
rebooting.

BY MS. LAVELL:

Q Did he indicate to you when he had most recently
reset his phone?

A he d4did, earlier that afternoon.

Q Did he indicate TO Yyou whether or not it was before
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or after Hazel called the police in regards tO the defendant?
r  After.
MS. LAVELL: I'm gbing to pass the witness.
THE COURT: All right. Mr . Jackson, Cross.
MR. JACKSON: May I approach the bench with --
THE COURT: You may.

(Conference at the bench not recorded.)

M. JACKSON: May T approach the witrness, Your Honor?

THE COURT: You may move freely.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. JACKSON:

Q Ts this the statement the prosecutor has been showing

you? 1Is this the one that you've been —-

A Yes, that's —-—
Q A1l right.
A - the transcribed statement.
*( Q and did you help prepare this, or is this the one you

reviewed before coming into court?

A It is.

Q Now, this one —-— YOU say the specific crime Mr. Shue

was originally charged with was capturing an image; is that

correct?
A That's correct.
®) When you initially were investigating the case, he

was investigated for capturing the image of another; is that
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correct?

MS. BEVERLY: Judge, can we approach?. Can we please
approach?

THE CQURT: Sure.

MR. JACKSON: 1Is there an objection to my guestion?

(Conference at the bench not recorded.)

WBY MR. JACKSON:

Q I'm going to rephrase the qUestion. The page of this
voluntary statement under specific crime, it says, Capturing
the image; is that right?

A That's correct.

Q All right. You were the detective in charge of this

investigation; is that correct?

A That's correct.
Q How many other detectives or officers were involved
in this --

THE COURT: Your notes are up.

MR. JACKSON: I'm SOrry?

THE COURT: Your notes are up. Either she can shut
the JAVS off, or you need to move your pad.
| MR. JACKSCON: Oh, is this blocking?

THE MARSHAL: No, it's the one —-

MR. JACKSCN: Oh, this cne. OCh, 1 see. All right.

THE COURT: Okay. She shut it off. You can leave

your stuff there, Mr. Jackson. You can leave your stuff on the
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Elmo.
MR. JACKSON: All right. I'll just move them all
r hack here.

BY MR. JACKSON:

Q Can you hear me from here?
I‘ A I can.
Q I'm more comfortable here.‘ How many other officers
o : ) C

-

| were assisting you in this investigation?

Q You were the main person involved in gathering the

evidence and preparing this case; is that right?

A In preparing the case, that's correct.

me——

attorneys involved in prosecuting this case; is that correct?

A That's correct.

putting the evidence together in this case; is that correct?

A That's correct.

Q Now, you took statements from a number of people in
this case; is that correct?

A That's correct.

Q Now, did you take statements from people before the
Grand Jury hearing?

A That's correct.

Q Did you have occasion to interview Anita Iral?
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A Interview her --

Q Yes.

A —— pno. I'm kind of confused what you mean by
interview. Have T talked to her? Or did I ——

Q Well, interview. Do you -—- &5 @ detective, you
interview someone, right?

A Well, my defiﬁition of an interview is something
that's put on a recording and going to be transcribed later or
4 written statement. That I did not do.

0 nid she testify in front of the Grand Jury?

A That I don't know. I don't know if she -—— 1
restified, but I don't know if she testified.

Q You're the lead officer in charge cof the case; is
that right?

A That's correct.

MS. LAVELL: I'm going to -—-

MS. BEVERLY: We are going to object. How would he
know who I called at the Grand Jury?

THE COURT: Well, he can say then that he doesn't
xnow. I don't think that's an appropriate cbjection. 1 mean,
if he knows, he knows. If he doesn't —- you can clear it up 1n
your redirect examination if you think 1t's confusing.

BY MR. JACKSON:
Q vyou don't consult with the deputy district attorney

about who are the important witnesses she should call before
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the Grand Jury? That's not your —-

Jiy Not --
C -— input?
A I do not.

Q Okay. Did she ask you, you know, who might be

available to testify in front of the Grand Jury?

B She does not have to clear who she subpoenas through
me, no.
0 211 right. Now, but the guestion -- let me rephrase

the question about interviewing Anita Iral. Did you have any
conversations with her?

A I did.

Q All right. Now, you had conversations with Hazel

Iral; is that correct?

A That's correct.

Q How many conversations did you have with Hazel Iral?
A I don't ‘know the exact number. So I;ll say a few.

Q More than five?

A Less than five.

Q Okay. Now, would it be fair to say Hazel Iral was a

reluctant witness at first?

A That would not be fair to say, no.

0 Okay. She was a cooperative witness at all times
then?

A That's correct.
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Q Okay. The case -- were you responsible for ensuring
Hazel Iral was present for court?

A No, I was not.

Q You weren't involved in contacting her as a witness

or making arrangements for her transportaticn toc and from

court?

A No, I was not.

Q Did you ever get any phone records from Hazel Iral?

A I did not.

Q Did you ever request her iPhone to check its
contents?

A I did not.

Q Did you ever check her Facebook page?

A I did not.

Q Okay. Was she ever investigated to determine her

background concerning this event?

A She was not.

Q Okay. Did you know whether she had any kind of
background that might make her -- either her credibility as a
witness or any difficulties with her —-

MS. LAVELL: Your Honor, I'm going to object, and I'm
going to ask to —
MR. JACKSON: Well, it's a guestion for the lead

investigating detective.

THE COURT: .Well, wait a minute. Mr. Jackson, she

KARR Reporting, Inc.
i60

983



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

ll

made an obijection.

MR. JACKSON: Ckay.

THE COURT: The objection is overruled. You can
continue your guestioning.
8y MR. JACKSON:

Q All right. Did you do any background investigation
of Hazel Iral in your duties as the lead investigating
detective in this case?

A I did.

Q Ckay. And was there anything in her background that
caused you any concern about her viability as a witness?

A Not that T can remember.

Q Not that you can remember. Did you have anything in
your reports that might suggest that there was any prohlems
with her yiability in your record? And you can check your
notes.

A 1 do not. DNo, I do not.

Q What kind of things would make a witness maybe

someone that you might have some guestions about their —-

either their veracity or their viability as a witness in court?

MS. LAVELL: Your Honor, I'm going to object.
It's —-

MR. JACKSON: Ch, that's a perfectly proper -—

MS. LAVELL: Can I finish my objection?

THE COURT: Well, no —— I don't —— I'l]l see counsel
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up here.
(Conference at the bench not recorded.)
BY MR. JACKSON:.

Q Let me ask you some general guestlons about a
witness. I1f a witness is evidenced mental instability, would
that make them a less reliable witness 1n generél?

A It would.

] All right. 1If a witness has been receiving --

MS. LAVELL: And I'm going to cbject, and I'm going
to ask -—
MR. JACKSON: T haven't even asked a guestion.
MS. LAVELL: I'm going to object, and I'm goling tg¢
ask to approach.
THE COQURT: All right. I think, Mr. Jackson, can you
just —-
(Conference at the bench not recorded.)
. THE COURT: That's sustained as to the last issue.
You can continue this line of questioning,
Mr. Jackson.
BY MR. JACKSON:

Q You want to scrutinize a witness very carefully for
bias; isn't that correct?

A That's correct.

Q Angd your duty as an investigator 1s to look at every

little nuance in a witness to determine whether or not someone
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or something might motivate them to be favorable to one side or
the other; is that right?

A That's correct.

Q Sometimes a witness is faveorable to the defense
because they either feel sympathetic to them, or favorable to
the prosecution because they feel either wronged, or feel the
prosecution is on their side or whatever; is that correct?

A I lost ycu on --

Q Ckay. Well, a witness might have one reason or

another or favoring one side more than the other; 1s that

correct?
A That's correct.
0 And if someone was influencing a witness improperly,

that's something that should come out; isn't that correct?

3 That's correct.

Q 211 right. And you try to find out tec make -- 1f you
can?

A That's correct.

Q a1l right. Now, one of the perscns that would have

the most knowledge about Bazel Iral, a young woman, would be
her mother; is that correct?

A That's correct.

Q She would be the one that weoculd probably know her the
longest; is that right?

A That's correct.
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ri Q And of course you didn't inferview her mother aboutl
Hazel Iral?

FI A I did not.

Q Did anyone else in the police department interview

“ her mother?

A No.
Ii Q Were you present during the search of Mr. Shue's
residence?
f A I was not.
Q You directed what should be taken in that search?
Pi A 1 zuthored the search warrant; that's correct.
O Okay. Now, did you authorize the search and seizure

of condoms?

fi A Once again, I would have to see the search warrant.
There were several things listed in the search warrant.

Q Do you have a Ccopy of the search warrant with you?

s T have one —- I have it Qut there if you want me to
get it.

Q You just don't remember authorizing that?

A There's —- there's so many things listed on there.
It's a -—

MS. LAVELL: I'm sorry.

counsel should have a COpY of the search warrant. It

was provided to him.

THE COURT: Okay. Mr. Jackson can either refresh his
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memory or not refresh his memory. It's his cross-examination.
And then, Ms. Lavell, if ybu would like to cover the
search warrant, Lthen you can show it to the officer. I'm not
goind to make Mr. Jackson do it. He can proceed with his
questions however he wants to proceed with them.
THE WITNESS: Sir, if it's -- on the search for an --

THE COURT: So there's no question before you right

now.

THE WITNESS: Ckay.

THE COURT: Ms. Lavell as you know will have the
opportunity for cross -- redirect if she wants Lo go over any

of these things.
By MR. JACKSON:

Q Did you direct the forensic evaluation of what you
wanted from the forensic evaluation that was completed by the
preceding officer who just testified?

A You'll have to ask that again.

Q Detective Ramirez, did you -- did you direct him what
you were looking for?

A Yes.

Q All right. Before he did his evaluation, did you
tell him specifically what to search for?

A That's correct.

Q Do you know how long Detective Ramirez took to

complete his evaluation?
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A I -— it was a while. I couldn't give you the exact
amount -- number of days.

Q A week or more?

A That's cecrrect.

Q Qkay. And during that time -— well, let me rephrase

that.

Did you have more than one communication with him during

the time he was doing his evaluation?

A

Q

Yes.

pid you go to the forensic evaluation lab at any time

while he was doing his evaluation?

A

Q

e

Q
A

Q

I did.

How many times?

A few, multiple.
So more than once?
That's correct.

Just to consult with him or to go in the lab and

assist nim with his evaluation?

That's correct.
Are you trained in the evaluation of --
Not at all.

Did you bring him more photos or more discs to

evaluate while he was doing his evaluation?

Mr .

A

Q

No.

Did you have more than one case at a time going

Ramirez was working on?
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A pDid I have more than one case working, or —-

Q More than one case ——

=

-—— working with -—-
Q -- that you were working with Detective Ramirez on?
A That's correct.

Q So you'd go in and out of his office on more than one
occasion with. different cases; is that right?

A That's correct.

Q Did you basically have keys'to his office and go 1in
there and drop off things ﬁhenever it was important to go in

there?

A No, he works in & secure facility that I deon't have

access to. He would have to allow me in.

Q There's no —-- there's a code to get in, or you have a
g Y

key to get in?

A There's, like, & proxy card to get in. I don't have
access.

Q Do you know who has access to that?

A Other than Detective Ramirez, I don't know who all

has access there.

Q 7 You contacted Mr. Shue by phone; is that correct,
when you first had contact with him?

A I don't think so. I think it was in person.

o} Sso you went and knocked on his --

MR. JACKSON: Can I sit down, Ycur Honor?
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THE COURT: You may.
MR. JACKSON: A1l right. Thank you. My legs are
bothering me this late in the day.
BY MR. JACKSON:
Q Officer, when you first had contact with him, you
went tc his house?
A No.
Q Where did you meet him first?
MS. BEVERLY: Judge, can we approach?
Judge, can we apprecach?
THE COURT: Sure.
MR. JACKSON: All right.
{Conference at the bench not recorded.)
MR. JACKSON: All right. Your Honor, I'm going to
withdraw that question.
THE COURT: Okay.
MR. JACKSON: I'm going to move on.
BY MR. JACKSON:
Q Detective --
MR. JACKSON: Court's indulgence for a moment.
THE COURT: That's fine.
MR. JACKSON: Your Honor, we'll pass the witness.
THE COURT: All right. Redirect.
MS. BEVERLY: Court's indulgence.

MS. LAVELL: Thank ycu, Your Honor.
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REDIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MS. LAVELL:
Q Detective, Mr. Jackson was asking you a lot of
guestions about Hazel, specifically if you investigated her, if
you looked into her phone or her broether’'s phone. Was she a

suspect of anything?

A She was not.

0 She was the complaining party?

A she was the victim; that's correct.

Q And you met with her on the Z23rd, correct?

A That's correct.

Q And you've already testified to what she indicated

the defendant had said and done?

A Yes.

Q Then you -- you testified that you met with the
defendant?

A T did.

Q and he admitted to kissing her, although he said it
was on the cheek?

A Yes.

] He admitted to taking a photograph up her skirt?

A That's correct.
¢ And he admitted to telling her that he was only with

the mcther becau5e~of her, that he had romantic feelings for

her?
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A That's correct.

Q0 So what she was alleging was corroborated?
A That 's correct.
Q Now, in regards to the -- the images that were

ultimately found on the computer that was impounded via your
search warrant, was there any evidence to suggest that Hazel

had any clue that she was being videotaped in the bathroom?

A There was nhot.
Q Counsel also asked you about the search warrant and
whether or not -- whether or not the search warrant authorized

seizure of, say, condoms. Do you remember that guestion?
A Yes.

Q Do you know what all was impounded as a result of the

search warrant?

Pt 7 have it all written down. Off the top of my head,

I do not.
@) Okay. Would it refresh your -- are you familiar with

a property report?

A Yes.

Q 1f you reviewed the property report, will you be able
to determine whether or not condoms and various other items
were actually impounded?

A Yes.

MR. JACKSON: That's not the —-- that isn't whether

the search warrant authorized it. It's what -- I -- I'1l agree
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that they impounded that. That's already come cut in evidence.
MS. BEVERLY: No, they didn't impound that. That's
why I want to appreach.
THE COURT: Okay. Well, it should be the return
and -- which says what was impounded.
MS. LAVELL: That's fine.
MR. JACKSON: All right. Your Honor, if they want to
admit it, that's fine.
THE COURT: She can ask if she wants té get into
that. I mean --
MR. JACKSON: All right. T opened it up. She can
admit what they impounded.
MS. LAVELL: I'm not trying --
MR. JACKSCN: But let me —--
MS. LAVELL: Well, I waén't trying tc admit --
THE CQOURT: No, she can get into the question of
how —— you know, whether you asked that same gquestion or not,
Ms. Lavell can ask it.
BY MS. LAVELL: |
Q In addition to the property report, are you familiar
with a search warrant return?
A I am.

0 And just for the edification of the jury, what 1is a

‘search warrant return?

A The search warrant return is everything that's
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collected during the search warrant. On the search warrant, we
have to list where we want to search, why we want Lo search
there and what we're looking for, and then once that's granted,
when we do the search, everything that's taken on the search is
annotated on the search warrant return.

Q If T were to show you both the property report, which
is specific to this case, and the return, which is specific to
the search of 609 Palm Wash, the defendant's residence, will
you be able tO tell me whether or not condoms were even
impounded?

A Yes.

Q 1f you could just 1ook at the return and the property
report.

A ~  No condoms were impounded.

MS. LAVELL: Court's indulgence.

BY MS. LAVELL:

A THE COURT: That's fine.
L 0 All right. I'm publishing what has previocusly been

‘ admitted as State's Exhibit 65. There is a screen, and it's
not on yet, but it will be.

H THE COURT: Because the Elmo is off.

P MS. LAVELL: 1 have to do this?

h THE COURT: No, I think Janie has to do it.

MR. JACKSON: And, Counsel, show it to me -- oh,

thank you.
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MS. LAVELL: It's previously admitted.

MR. JACKSON: Okay.

THE COURT: What exhibit 1is it?

MS. LAVELL: It's State's Exhibit 65.

MR. JACKSON: T don't know if this is inside the
scope of my cross—-examination.

THE COURT: Well, overruled.

MR. JACKSCON: Okay.
BY M5. LAVELL:

Q Do you see — do you see the condoms that Mr. Jackscn
referenced in his guestion to you inside the drawer?

A Yes, I do.

Q Do you see various other items, like the lubricant
and the soothing care that are not contained on that return or
that property report?

A Yes, I do.

Q. So simply because scmecne photo —- law enforcement
photograph certain items at a crime scene does not mean they
impound all of those items?

A _‘ That's correct.

MS. LAVELL: Ccurt's indulgence.
Nothing further.

THE. COURT: Anything else, Mr. Jackson?
MR. JACKSON: No questions. '

THE COURT: All right. Any juror questions for the
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witness?
All right. I1'1l see counsel at the bench, please.
{(Conference at the bench not recorded.)

THE COURT: We have a few juror questions up, and 1if,
you know, you don't know the answer, just tell us that, or
please refer it to another witness.

Was the phone reset prior to the defendant's visit at
the Metro office and after you're in-person visit? Do you know
when the phone was reset, in other words?

THE WITNESS: Mr. Shue indicated that it was reset

before the interview at headguarters.

TEE COURT: A1l right. Could you tell how often the
phone needed resetting or how many Limes it had been reset
prior to your interview?

THE WITNESS: That's not a question I could answer.

I'm not one of the tech guys. Detective Ramirez could answer

that.

THE COURT: ©Okay. Why was Hazel Iral's mother not

questioned? Why didn't you feel it was necessary to interview

her?

THE WITNESS: She wasn't real cooperative.

THFE COURT: Okay. Were the contacts listed in the
defendant's address book -— were there contacts in the

defendant's address book contacts list?

THE WITNESS: That I can't remember. I know that
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there was no call logs or text messages or anything. -1 don't
know if I looked in the contacts.

THE COURT: Was the call log history and/or text
message history investigated using the cell phone carrier?

THE WITNESS: Once again, I couldn't answer that.
That is Defective Ramirez.

THE COURT: Okay. But you didn't direct anybody -+

THE WITNESS: I did not direct anybody.

THE COURT: —— to contact the carrier and get cell
phone records or anything like that?

THE WITNESS: ©No, I did not.

THE COQURT: Okay. And were other rooms searched
beside -- besides Mr. Shue's room?

THE WITNESS: ©No, we searched just Mr. Shue's room
pecause he had —— he had roommates at the house, and our séope
of the search just involved hié room.

THE COURT: All right. Mr. Jackson, did you have any
follow-up to that last series of juror questions?

MR. JACKSON: No gquestions.

THRE COURT: Ms. Lavell, did you have any fcllow-up?

MS. LAVELL: Yes, thank you.

FOLLOW-UP EXAMINATION
BY MS. LAVELL:
Q So just to be clear, the location where the computer

| was located is Mr. Shue's residence where he lives with
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roommates, not with Hazel and her family?

A That's correct.

0 and his rocmmates were not accused of anything by
Hazel?

yat They were not.

Q So is it fair to say you attempted to talk to Hazel's

mother Anita, but she would not cooperate with you?

A That's correct.

0 &nd there was a question in regards to whether or not
the cell phone was resel or wiped before the interview at the
detective bureau, and your answer was, Yes?

A - Yes.

Q - However, you previously testified that it was alfter
the peolice report was filed, correct?

A That's correct.

MS. LAVELL: Nothing further.

THE COURT: Mr. Jackson?

MR. JACKSON: Court's indulgence.

No further guestions.

THE COURT: Any additiocnal juror questions for this
.witness?

(No response.)

THE COURT: All right. Detective, I see no further

guesticns here. Please don't discuss your testimony with

anyone else who may Le a witness in this matter, and you are
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a)ll right. Ladies and gentlemen, we're going to go
ahead and take our evening recess. The Court has a calendar on
various uhrelated civil matters in the morning. So we will
reconvene at 10:30.

During the evening recess you are admonished that
you're not to discuss the case with each other or with anyoﬁe
else. You're not to read, watch or listen to any reports of or
commentaries on this case, any person or subject matter related
to the case. Do not do any independent research by way of the
Internet or any other medium, and please don't form or exXpress
an opinion on the case.

If you'd all please place your notepad in your
chairs, fellow the pailiff through the double doors, we'll see
you back here at 10;30.

(Jury recessed 4:53 p.m.)

THE COURT: Al right. The reason I told the jury
not to be back until 10:30 is because I would like you folks
all here tomorrow at —-— let's say 9 -- no, let's say
10 o'clock, prepared to argue the issue of the mistrial and
whether or not that was an eguivocal or uneguivocal invocation
of the right to counsel, and if it was an unequivocal
invocation, then what impact the fact that it was testified
about has on the trial, and if it was an eguivocal --

unequivoecal, whatever was the last one I didn't say -- what
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impact that would have.

So Mr. Jackson had indicated he wanted toc bring some
case law. That's fine. If the State has some case law they
want to bring, that's fine. NDue to the late hour today, I
don't expect anybody to prief the issue. You certainly can if
you want to, but I'm just expecting some case law and argument.
So that's why I want you here 30 minutes before the jury gets
here so we can argue about that.

MS. BEVERLY: Thank you, Judge.

MR. JACKSON: Thank you, Your HONor. I'11 try to be
in the law library at 7 o'clock, but I may sleep in till about
7:30. So who knows?

THE COURT: All right. Well, as long as you're here

by 10.

MR. JACKSON: All right. 1'11 do my best.

MS. LAVELL: No, not by 10. By 9.

THE COURT: No, just 10.

MR. JRCKSON:

THE COURT: Because we have our civil calendar at
9:30.

MS. LAVELL: Okay. So we don'f have to be here until
10. Okay.
A | ,
/7
/o
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MR. JACKSON:
THE COURT:

here at 10:30.

1'1l be in the law library at 9.

So 10.

So 10 for you guys.

The jury is

(Proceedings recessed for the evening 4:55 p.m.)
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